




  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

1 
 

Mashpee Planning Board 

 Minutes of Meeting 

Wednesday, April 03, 2024 at 7:00 PM 

Mashpee Town Hall - Waquoit Meeting Room 

16 Great Neck Road North 

Mashpee, Ma 02649 

 

Broadcast Live on Local Channel 8  

Call-in Conference Number: (508)-539-1400 x 8585 

Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee website 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel -8 
 

Present: Chair Karen Faulkner, Mary Waygan, Dennis Balzarini, Dale Oakley, Mike 
Richardson, Rob Hansen  

Also Present: Evan Lehrer – Town Planner, Ed Pesce – Consulting Engineer, Christopher 
Kirrane – Attorney representing Joao Junqueira, Robert Dewar – Bracken Engineering  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Karen Faulkner called the meeting of the Planning Board to order at 7:00 PM. The 
Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 20, 2024  
No comments were made regarding the minutes.  
 

MOTION: 
Mr. Richardson made a motion to approve the meeting minutes of March 20, 2024, 
as written. Seconded by Mr. Balzarini. All in favor.  

 
Review and approval of Meeting Minutes from joint Select Board and Planning Board 
from December 18, 2023 
 

MOTION:  
Ms. Waygan made a motion to table the minutes dated December 18, 2023, joint 
meeting with Select Board, until next meeting April 17, 2024. All in favor.  

 
Ms. Faulkner read a letter from Rodney Collins, Town Manager, regarding funding for 
Wastewater Phase 2. Many people had questions relative to scope and cost. At times, the 
technical elements of a project are overwhelming, which leads to confusion. Article 6 will 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel%20-8


  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

2 
 

rescind the previously authorized borrowing of $4.5 Million. The new Article 4 will authorize 
$96.1 Million to complete Phase 2.  
 
You can click on the clean water tab on the Town of Mashpee website to review roads covered 
in Phase 2. The Wastewater Superintendent as well as the Finance Committee have provided 
a good faith estimate. They are striving to keep tax rates low. All available funding sources 
have been utilized. The debt service plan relies on obtaining a 0% state revolving fund. 
Mashpee’s eligibility was confirmed from a DEP letter and contingent on the Flow Neutral 
Bylaw as well as voter approval. There is a 25% principal debt relief from the water protection 
fund. They will use all future revenue not already committed from the wastewater stabilization 
fund and revenue growth efforts. The expected Phase 2 tax increase over a 30-year life is 
$75.00 per year for the average resident. The average home costs $772,000. This will not 
commence until FY 2029, at the earliest. This will not have an impact on the tax rate for the 
next five years and allow the opportunity to change the payment approach.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Arden Russell: She thanked the Chair, as this letter was relative to her comment this evening. 
She reiterated the SRF funding being contingent on the Flow Neutral Bylaw. She saw this as a 
mandate from the Town Manager to all departments, boards, and committees to protect 
funding. This Board cannot approve the proposal for Willowbend and still comply with the 
existing FNB. They are asking for more bedrooms than are currently allowed. Additionally, 
after the last meeting, we all now know that permit conditions are meaningless. This permit 
ignores conditions. Conditioning this permit might make this Board feel good, but she has no 
confidence any of those conditions will be enforced by our own Building Commissioner. The 
Zoning Bylaw that lists required findings for issuance of Special Permit, each has criteria it 
must meet, and a positive determination cannot be made in good conscience. She is deeply 
disappointed that members speak publicly in favor of the environment, advocate for setbacks, 
and run as clean water candidates, but when opportunity presents to act, those values appear 
to fall.  
 
Mr. Lehrer reminded the Board that deliberation cannot consider any additional testimony. Ms. 
Waygan noted they cannot prevent someone from speaking after already letting one person 
speak, it just cannot change their mind.  
 
Wendy Williams- She reminded the Board they cannot tell someone what they can and 
cannot say in Public Comment. The procedure that happened during this Public Hearing was 
atrocious. So many rules and regulations were broken. She is appalled. We know the Madame 
Chair had a private off record meeting with the project proponent and did not do that with the 
permission or direction of the Board. There have been numerous egregious problems 
connected to this project. She asked for notes and was told she couldn’t have any for that 
meeting. She stated Mr. Richardson said at the beginning that he golfs there and is voting in 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

3 
 

favor of it. She informed him he should recuse himself as he has a personal connection to the 
project. The subject of her discussion point is denying without prejudice. Willowbend must 
provide a comprehensive water analysis before the Board can allow a project with 12 cottage 
style homes. The proposed expansion will significantly increase pollution in Poppy Bay. By law 
they must now prove this before the Planning Board can decide to grant a Special Permit. 
Given our already degraded waters, we cannot conflict with our wetland protection and 
groundwater protection bylaws. General Bylaws establish specific performance standards to 
protect water from nitrogen. Excess algae lead to fish kills and blooms. Pollutants have 
degraded the embayment. Legislation calls for pollution reduction and development will 
increase that. The state approved the Comprehensive Management Plan in 2015 and relies on 
an adaptive management approach to allow shellfish to clean the waters. We have a certificate 
proving our wastewater plan, no development should be improved unless it can prove it won’t 
jeopardize these resources. Even projects connected to sewer cannot just be compliant. 
Willowbend abuts water and exceeds nitrogen limits. Poppy Bay nitrogen must be reduced by 
34%. Santuit, including Quaker Run, require 423% reduction. She referenced Troy Miller’s 
2024 letter, where he claims these 14 units, now 12, will be serviced by Willowbend under 
DEP permit, that total nitrogen will be 50% less than if the site were developed as 3 single 
family units. This claim is unsubstantiated by any model and by no means valid. Who has the 
burden of proof? It is on Willowbend. Mass mitigation is required as well as consistency with 
the watershed nitrogen plan. The Board must demand a detailed site-specific nitrogen loading 
analysis. The Town must rigorously evaluate all development moving forward.  
 
Jack McElhinney- He declares this out of order as the Public Hearing has been closed, it 
went on for a year. This Board is allowing the public record, established over a year, to be 
tainted by comments after public record has been closed. A Judge would say stricken from the 
record. This is bad practice and he would recommend they consult Town Counsel about 
appropriateness.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
7:10PM    
   Applicant:  Joao Junqueira   

Location:  474 Main Street (Map 27-21-A) and 31 Ashumet Road (Map 27-21-
B) 

Request:   Applicant proposes to construct a 4,752 sq. ft. commercial building 
for retail sales of water related products with indoor and outdoor 
storage.  

 
Ms. Waygan and Mr. Lehrer both recused themselves from the Public Hearing.   
 
Ms. Faulkner read the application for the Special Permit, dated February 12, 2024. Checks 
totaling $5,525 addressed to the Town of Mashpee. There are two claim deeds conveying land 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

4 
 

in question to Mr.  Junqueira. Included is a proposed site plan. There is an extensive drainage 
analysis report as well as Mr. Pesce’s report on the matter. Architectural plans were submitted 
as well.  
 
Mr. Kirrane is present this evening representing Joao Junqueira. He noted there was an error 
in the size of the commercial building and corrected it is a 6,000 sq. ft. It is in C3 zoning, and a 
portion of the bottom corner is in R5. The entrance to the building will be off Ashumet Rd. The 
lot is located in the light industrial overlay and ground water protection. Robert Dewar with 
Bracken Engineering, Roger Brooks from Cape Wide Construction, and representatives from 
E.J. Prescott are with him tonight. E.J. Prescott already has a building in Mashpee for over 20 
years.  
 
The lot is 90,000sq. ft. with over 200ft. of frontage on both Main St. and Ashumet Road. The 
proposed structure will be 76 ft. from Main St., 245ft. from Ashumet, the building will be 107 ft. 
from the southerly side yard setback, and 21 feet from the northernly side. Lot coverage is 
6.1% which is well under the 20% maximum allowed in the C3 Zoning District. They had a Site 
Plan Review which consists of representatives from the Board of Health, Planning, Fire, Police, 
DPW, and Building. There are 9 parking spaces proposed, including one handicap. It meets 
the requirements for the zoning bylaw. There will be one access off Ashumet Rd. with no traffic 
exiting or entering. There will be a substantial natural buffer remaining, some trees may be 
disturbed but will be replanted. Next week the project will go through the Historical 
Commission. This is water service for stormwater, nothing hazardous, it is wholesale retail of 
plumbing supplies. The Special Permit criteria complies with state and Town of Mashpee 
zoning. It will not adversely affect public health or safety. They are currently located on 
Industrial Drive. They will not be affecting any conservation. They don’t anticipate heavy traffic 
or many large trucks, it will be mostly contractors with pickups.  
 
Ms. Faulkner noted they will have 1,200ft. devoted to a showroom, but combined square 
footage will be under 10,000 sq. ft. Standards for C3 development, approved signage and 
lighting with no odorous activity. She inquired about the lighting design. She noted the side 
facing Rt.130 is clapboard and the front is shingles, because they must comply with historical. 
She asked about the holding tank and where it would be located. It was answered lighting 
meets requirements.  

 
Robert Dewar with Bracken Engineering answered the holding tank is required and is separate 
from the septic. It is used for floor drains. Any time there is an overhead garage door with any 
potential for a vehicle it requires a holding tank so drains can be pumped out. The tank has 
double walls for leakage and an alarm at 75% capacity. They are only selling plumbing 
equipment and piping so it may go many years before it requires to be pumped.  
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

5 
 

Mr. Kirrane read through all the conditions of C3, he also noted the majority of the parcel 
determines what district the overall parcel is considered.  

 
Mr. Balzarini inquired about the title 5 septic, and it was answered that the nitrogen flow isn’t 
like residential, so they do not require the IA technology.  
 
Mr. Pesce noted there is no issue with septic design, they still must go before the Board of 
Health for septic and holding tank.  
 
Mr. Balzarini asked about putting trees back, he would like to see what is going to be planted 
there and what will be along Ashumet Road to make it look residential.  
 
Mr. Kirrane noted a lot on Ashumet Road isn’t being disturbed, it will be left natural.  
 
Mr. Hansen noted some of the foliage might need to be pruned to allow for site distance for 
turning, but he wants to leave as much of a natural buffer.  
 
Mr. Oakley stated this is across the street from where people have homes, how will this affect 
their homes and their day to day?  
 
Mr. Hansen asked about the natural vegetation, especially around the outside storage, will 
there be pipes? He has seen evidence of pallets and pipes. How high is the maximum height 
for storage of materials and will natural foliage screen it?  
 
Mr. Kirrane reiterated the building is 200 ft. back from Ashumet Road, likely to have sufficient 
screening. They are in C3 zoning, it allows for commercial uses. It will not be the only building 
that has commercial use there. This is a low impact project and use. E.J. Prescott has been in 
this town for 20 years. This is not sticking a commercial building in the middle of residential 
zoning.  
 
Mr. Pesce did a peer review. He made some comments relatively easy to comply with. Some 
general safety items such as the stop sign pruning and clearing the edges of Ashumet. On his 
site visit he looked at the site distance with no leaves but in the spring it will be different. He 
included a comment because it helps the board with the final decision making. The Fire 
Department will need to inspect for safe circulation with emergency vehicles or whatever else 
they want. There is more than adequate room to do that. The tight tank is domestic title 5. The 
holding tank is from the floor. It is not anticipated to fill the holding tank in a year, but he added 
a few things to comply with. He mentioned items on stormwater management. Consider using 
state of the art mechanisms for climate change. Calculations are run to adjust for the size of 
collection system. Runoff from parking will adequately perform. Finally, put signatures and 
dates on documents and inspection log for stormwater management. He believes it to be 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

6 
 

straightforward and well done, no major problems. He wants them to see the Fire Department. 
He will respond in writing that has been satisfied to get the building permit.  
 
Mr. Dewar stated 90% of the review has already been addressed. They are still working 
through stormwater and having the rain garden increase in size.  
 
Mr. Kirrane stated when you go to Site Plan Review you meet with the Fire Department. He is 
certainly happy to follow up, but they didn’t have any problems. The Board would like a follow-
up with the Fire Department.   
 
Mr. Hansen added that signage would be helpful to be able to identify the building.   
 
Mr. Kirrane stated that will come later down the road, but no signage is being proposed right 
now.  
 
Mohamad Fahd: He is an abutter. One of the main issues that everyone around him agrees 
on is Ashumet Road being the access road to this site. It should be investigated to see if it 
would be feasible to have access from Rout 130. Ashumet Road is a dead-end residential road 
that is protected from traffic and noise. This would disrupt pedestrian usability and lower 
property values. The plan shows an 18-wheeler truck in the parking lot, trucks will go in and 
out. The trucks are too large and anyone who drives Rt. 130 has to slow down because there 
is no curb so it’s difficult to maneuver. Ashumet Road was not built for truck traffic. If the 
pavement was inspected right now you would see that immediately. The intersection has 
already failed and needs repair. Added commercial will also ruin the road. The volume could 
endanger pedestrians, runners and bikers, who use the pedestrian way on Rt.130. Most 
pedestrians don’t turn left, they go right towards the museum and Herring Run. They could 
adjust the building in such a way to serve them. The asphalt parking lot is too large. This large 
area will lead to unsightly use of storage equipment. It will impact the neighborhood and lower 
values. Request for outdoor storage should be prohibited or all outdoor storage be screened 
with wooden fencing. The parking lot should be white top to diminish heat island. Lastly, make 
sure the lights don’t shine brightly at night to abutting properties.  
 
Leonard & Diane Pocknett (2 Ashumet Rd): She got a letter from the Planning Board, as they 
are within 300 feet of the proposed project. They agree with what Mr. Fahd said. Her husband 
grew up here and is nearly 80 years old. He has lived on that corner, and they know what is 
zoned for nearly 100 years. It was zoned in a time when there weren’t many people here. Rt. 
130 does have businesses, but Old Colony is a neighborhood. They have children and dogs. 
Ashumet is going to impact driveway traffic and the infrastructure has not been designed for 
the volume it has today. This will impact the environment and the property values and people 
being able to live and walk. In looking at noise and safety, this will cause more problems. They 
think of wildlife, if you walk up the road all these trees are knocked down, and then he found 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

7 
 

out this project was proposed. If this isn’t determined yet, why are trees being taken down? If 
18-wheeler trucks make deliveries, the people in Old Colony will be disturbed that live directly 
across from this business.  
 
Mr. Balzarini suggested they put the structure way up where the parking lot is, from Rt. 130, 
not interfering with all traffic. He is not going to vote for this unless they show there was 
another study done. The town uses that road all the time.  
 
Joel Clifford- He is the President for the Old Colony Association. He is worried about 
pedestrian foot traffic. This is a pedestrian friendly street with pickleball courts, a dog park, and 
sports fields. Ashumet Road is heavily trafficked all year long. There is a bus stop right at Old 
Colony Drive. He would like the Board to consider the entrance being relocated to Rt. 130.  
 
Bill Campbell- (35 Ashumet Rd.) He purchased at Oak Hollow about 6 months ago, at the top 
of the market, top dollar for this family friendly area. He has grandchildren and that was a big 
part of the motivation to move there, it has a swimming pool on site and is in walking distance 
to the park. He thinks when it comes to the size of vehicles, it should be memorialized on the 
deed, as well as no further construction.  
 
Paul Lehman- (2 Birch Way) He is located across Rt.130. Everyone keeps saying to move the 
entrance to Rt. 130. The issue is the intersection, it is the entrance to his neighborhood. That 
was part of the reason Ashumet Road was chosen. The other issue he is concerned about is 
when the deliveries would be happening. Landscapers now have deliveries coming in at 
2:00a.m. sometimes. The lighting which has already been addressed, but he doesn’t want 
bright lights like down on Echo Road.   
 
Antonio Brum- (96 Old Colony Dr.)  He has been there since 1987 when the development 
was first constructed. The issue with traffic on Rt. 130 has increased greatly since 1987. It is 
increasingly more difficult to pull out and back into because of the traffic flow on Rt. 130. Have 
we really reached a point in Mashpee where plumbers have supplied such shotty products that 
we now need two wholesale plumber supplies a stones throw away from each other? Napa 
was vacant for a while, nobody jumped on that, easy in and easy out development. Ashumet 
Rd. is not the answer, Old Colony has 29 homes, kids, and parks.  
 
Joao Junqueira – He stated E.J. Prescott is a drainage store for septic supplies, there are 12 
-15 customers a day. It’s his company, septic systems, not sinks or faucets, he sells drainage 
for sewers and septic. He would love to have an entrance on Rt. 130, but the Zoning Bylaw 
prohibits an entrance there. When you front on 2 different streets Rt. 130 a public way, it 
requires use of other driveway. They will be open 7:00a.m.-4:00p.m. and closed on weekends. 
They might have 2-3 deliveries a day, it is not a constant coming in and out of with trucks. 
There will be a lock gate that only the Fire Department will have a key to. They are over 250 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

8 
 

feet from Ashumet Rd. and have done a good job protecting visibility and complying with 
lighting.  
 
Ms. Faulkner asked where the outdoor storage would be located, it was answered in the back 
of the building.  
 
Bill Campbell- He heard there wouldn’t be trucks, everyone knows what septic and concrete 
trucks look like, they are going to be large trucks, and storage too.  
 
Mr. Kirrane reiterated they are building in a commercial zone and will not impact foot traffic. 
The operating hours are during the day and not open on weekends. He asked what the reason 
for a continuance would be, and what information is needed that the Board does not already 
have?  

 
Mr. Pesce stated the location of the driveway could move to the corner. The Board seeks to 
continue, and he recommends the Board go look at the site, look at the intersection, and look 
at where that bus stop is. Twice a day the bus will pick up and drop off. We could likely restrict 
deliveries, but that is something to consider. The width of Ashumet Rd. will be looked at as well 
as the amount of traffic. He recognized people will be walking with dogs, not generally walking 
towards Rt. 130, but some may.  The use of the intersection where Ashumet meets Rt. 130 is 
common access and safe site distance, that won’t affect Birch Way or add another conflict. 
Each selection has conflict, which has lesser impact?  
 
Mr. Hansen inquired about the long drive coming across on the side of Johnson Road, the 
unbuilt subdivision. It was answered that nothing is there today, its town owned land.  
 
Ms. Faulkner stated she would like to have the site visit, review the abutters petition that Mr. 
Fahd spoke on, and re-read the information again before making a decision. 
 

MOTION:  
Mr. Balzarini made a motion to continue the Public Hearing to April 17, 2024 at 
7:10p.m. Seconded by Mr. Richardson. All in favor.  

 
Site Visit: Scheduled for Wednesday, April 10, 2024 @ 9:00a.m. Mr. Pesce would like to meet 
at the current E.J. Prescott site at 89 Industrial Drive. He has an e-mail prepared for Chris 
Kirrane.  
 
NEW BUSINESS  
Vote to set a Public Hearing date for an Application for Approval of Definitive Plan and 
approval of an accompanying special permit submitted by New Seabury Homes, LLC to 
subdivide six parcels into seven new lots at property addressed as off the western 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

9 
 

sideline of Great Oak Road (between Red Brook Road and Sipps Road) (Map 110: 
Parcels 58, 59, 80, 82, 83, and 97) 
 

MOTION:  
Mr. Richardson made a motion to set two Public Hearing dates for May 1, 2024, 
the first one at 7:15p.m. for Special Permit, and the second at 7:20p.m. for the 
definitive subdivision. Seconded by Mr. Balzarini. All in favor.  

 
Vote to set Public Hearing date to establish the fee schedule for Tree Permits and 
Certificates of Exemption as required by Mashpee General Bylaw Chapter 175 Tree 
Preservation 
 

MOTION:  
Ms. Waygan made a motion to set the Public Hearing date to May 1, 2024 at 
7:05p.m. Seconded by Mr. Balzarini. All in favor.  

 
275 Quinaquisset Avenue- Deliberation and potential vote on the application submitted 
by Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC to modify the Willowbend Country Club Special 
Permit 
 

MOTION: 
Ms. Waygan made a motion that struck any information provided by Public 
Comment tonight from being put into public record and will not be considered 
during deliberations. Seconded by Mr. Balzarini. All in favor. 

 
Ms. Faulkner would like to review the draft decision, have Town Counsel review it, and vote on 
it next time.  
 
Mr. Lehrer said nothing was noted by Counsel that needed legal perspective. All bases were 
covered according to the zoning bylaw. It is important to be as clear as possible relative to data 
presented and received and issues with the proposed mitigation impacts identified.   
 
Ms. Faulkner knows what the proposal is, she will not be going over that. The first page was a 
lot of history, she will start on page 2 for the chronological events. February 1, 2023, the 
application was filed, then March 2, 2023 the Public Hearing was opened, and ample notice 
was given to abutters. There was a vote to close the Public Hearing on March 20, 2024. Today 
we are here to discuss the findings and vote.  

 
Ms. Faulkner moved on to Finding a., which everyone was fine with.   
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

10 
 

Ms. Waygan would need to look at the website, Special Permit Modification # 27 is on the 
website, she doesn’t think this is relevant to this modification. Finding b. will be struck.  
 
Ms. Faulkner went on with the current open space.  
 
Mr. Lehrer stated the Board needs to continue to establish that this project isn’t going away 
from special permit.   
 
Ms. Waygan commented 1985 zoning is part of public record, she would have to look at the 
public record for the special permit as amended. That will have to wait until next time. She 
doesn’t have those materials and paper right now.  
 
Ms. Faulkner does not know what special permit would have allowed in 1987. Under the 1985 
Special Permit the project was permitted for 338, in 1991 it reduced units to 287. This Board 
finds the max approved permissible units to be 287.  
 
Ms. Waygan stated in 1987 it was 338 units, that is correct. Ms. Waygan will confirm the 341 
original units before 1991. Wordage was changed to remove the word increased because it 
was confusing.  
 
Ms. Faulkner read aloud the bedroom count projected by Town Planner in August 2023, and 
confirmed by Ms. Waygan to be 855.  
 
Ms. Waygan thinks it should end, strike from Finding d. the new series of conditions, and those 
will go to Section 5 for the piece on mitigations on page 6 under C.  
 
Ms. Waygan will not vote in favor of compliance with Chapter 40a because it does not comply 
with zoning bylaws. She cannot say this will not have sufficient adverse impacts on wildlife or 
destroy or disturb archeological sites. She doesn’t think it can be found compliant because it’s 
not consistent with regulations, specifically the Flow Neutral Bylaw. She cannot find that the 
project will not destroy or disturb sites, so she tried to keep it open for research. She can’t 
support those conditions; they are not strong enough. You guys can say this language is fine, 
but she will not vote for it.  
 
She continued that it is not in compliance with state and town regulations, Flow Neutral Bylaw 
is a regulation. In Section 108, the flows are capped at 15-22 bedrooms,1 bedroom for 10,000 
sq. ft. If you add in wetlands and upland that’s 22 bedrooms, they have proposed 36-48, which 
is not consistent with FNB and is not allowed.  
 
Ms. Faulkner moved on to H, the Board finds Mashpee Flow Neutral Bylaw limits present and 
future flows permitted as of July 1, 2015, Chapter 108, one bedroom for 10,000sq. ft. for 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

11 
 

multifamily projects, such as Cranberry Point. Willowbend would be 26 bedrooms over the 
limit.   
 
Ms. Waygan would like to note that the 22-bedroom count to be correct. The use of without 
relief implies this is allowed with relief, it’s not. We might let them make the decision and then 
vote against it. This is a town regulation, we heard testimony saying it needs to be tweaked. 
This is the law of the land we have now. It was reviewed by Town Counsel, voted on and went 
to the AG. It’s dysfunctional, but they can’t negate because they don’t like it.  
 
Ms. Faulkner noted five members said “no” for F. If something doesn’t apply say does not 
apply. We need to respond to each and every one of those special permit conditions. Under G, 
the original 1987 Special Permit is conditioned to a minimum edge buffer of 100 ft. left in 
existing entrance areas and golf course areas. There was a site plan submitted for a 65ft. 
buffer between the first condo and the edge of Quinaquisset, which is less than the 100ft. 
requirement.  
 
Ms. Waygan would say everything is right, keep as is. The buffer strip is equal to the entire 
perimeter of the parcel. She will look up dimensional requirements. Ms. Waygan looked it up, 
everything in G is fine.  
 
Ms. Faulkner thinks that the flow neutral is poorly written.  
 
Ms. Waygan stated the purpose and intent clarifies everything but the rules and regulations of 
enforcing it need to be put into the bylaw.  
 
Ms. Faulkner moved onto I, everyone said it looked good. She went on to J, the forebay will 
collect runoff of Quinaquisset Bay, everyone is in favor of it. Under K, the submitted plan with 
the Consulting Engineer’s written responses on three dates, the Board accepts 
recommendation of Board engineer and comments are satisfactorily addressed.  
 
Ms. Waygan would like a condition added that final plans are approved by the Board Engineer. 
We cannot approve them because we closed the Public Hearing, but we delegate to the Town 
Engineer and make it a condition the final plans are approved by Ed Pesce.   
 
Ms. Faulkner went on to L, and it was stated would need to be followed up with a condition. M 
is Conservation, a correct statement everyone agreed. N contemplates subject parcel in 
conservation and will require review by Conservation. The project is exempt from the 
requirements of the Tree Bylaw, due to no jurisdiction in conservation. O states that the 
Planning Board finds proposal will not adversely affect public health or safety and will not 
cause excessive demands on community facilities and will not significantly decrease 
groundwater or air quality.  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

12 
 

Ms. Waygan does not agree with the water quality. She cannot make that finding. She cannot 
find if it will impact, estuarine programs are nitrogen, FNB is meant to clean up estuaries. 
Being over the bedroom count is a regulation, just as our special permit is a regulation. A 
Special Permit is considered a town regulation and if you’re not consistent with requirements 
you can deny modifications.  
 
Ms. Faulkner continued to traffic and waterways, neighboring properties, noise, or any 
electrical, radioactivity, or glare. Will it destroy or threaten species that are rare or any non-
historic or archaeological site? If we have a condition, it must be done, we shall condition, and 
she is confident they will follow through.  
 
Mr. Hansen inquired if the condition would include Tribal verification.  
 
Mr. Balzarini, Ms. Faulkner, and Mr. Hansen don’t want to disturb the Flow Neutral Bylaw 
funding.  
 
Ms. Waygan cannot find if the project will not have effects on estuarine systems. The answer 
has to be it does because it violates the Flow Neutral Bylaw, one bedroom per 10,000sq. ft.  
 
Ms. Faulkner read the conditions and asked if everything was current. Ms. Waygan would like 
to add that final plans are approved by our Board Engineer, i.e. grading, drainage, and utility 
plans.  

 
Ms. Waygan pressed this is a town regulation, we are acting as the town right now. We can try 
to spin it off, but right now we are responsible for this. She is not going to be able to find, 
whatever conditions go forward, she is voting no on the whole thing. She can’t make the 
finding in O. You can’t just vote no because you don’t like the plan, you must have a reason.  
 
Ms. Faulkner will remove the other relevant authority in D. She would like to get rid of 
everything after authority. We don’t make these arguments, strike I, II, and III, and end it with 
“to the satisfaction of the Sewer Commission or other relevant authority”.  
 
Ms. Waygan commented that people bring their questions to this Board, and we are 
empowered by state law. We are citizens and are fine with doing this, don’t doubt yourselves.   
 
Ms. Faulkner continued that no other permits should be permitted for this project, everyone 
agreed. She moved on to an archaeological site and bog restoration with a submitted site plan 
with Tribal Officer present during site visits. The site assessment shall take advantage of the 
latest technologies available.  
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

13 
 

Ms. Waygan stated the scope of work shall be approved by the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribal 
Historic Preservation Officer prior to any commencement of bog work described in E above, 
applicant shall retain this work prior to any issuance of a building permit.  
 
Ms. Waygan noted they can’t touch the bogs until conservation assesses the site. At minimum, 
the scope should include a response from David Weeden, additionally scope of work for PAL.  
 
Mr. Pesce stated PAL will do their work before anything. They take samplings of the land. A 
representative sampling is taken and if they think there is something there, then add language 
about the Tribal Historic Preservation Officer commentary.  
 
Ms. Waygan referenced the Tribe being Federally recognized and the federal government 
gives them the authority.   
 
Ms. Waygan asked if the Board wanted to say anything about construction times. No Sunday 
work, and start by 7:00a.m. during the week and leave by 5:00p.m., Saturday 8:00a.m. to 
3:00p.m., unless special permission is obtained. The Building Commissioner will be the one to 
get called.  
 
Ms. Faulkner stated I-K is fine. She stated under L, this decision must be recorded within 60 
days of the Board’s endorsement.  
 
Ms. Waygan will type up her Memo and give it to the Chair.  

 
OLD BUSINESS 
Continue review of draft implementation table of the Local Comprehensive Plan Update  
Mr. Lehrer merged the chapters.  
 
BOARD ENGINEER REPORT  
Nothing currently.  
 
TOWN PLANNER REPORT  
Housing Production Plan Update   
Plan for review by mid-May, it may be available sooner. The May 1st meeting is packed, Mr. 
Lehrer will plan for the second meeting of May.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  

MOTION:    
Mr. Balzarini made a motion to adjourn the meeting of the Planning Board at 
10:46p.m. Seconded by Mr. Richardson. All in favor.  
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  

                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

14 
 

 
 
Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 @ 7:00p.m.  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
 
Christine M. MacDonald  
Board Secretary  
 
 
 
 
LIST OF DOCUMENTS  
Additional documents may be available in the Planning Department.  
- February 2024 Discharge Monitoring Report for South Cape Village – N= 1.5  
- 48 Quaker Run Road MassDEP Waterways License Application No. 23-WW01-0156-APP 
- Notices for Towns of Barnstable, Sandwich, and Falmouth  
 
 
  
 
 



1 

 
                                                   

                                                                  AGENDA 
                                    SELECT BOARD 
         MONDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2023 
                                                                             WAQUOIT MEETING ROOM 
                                                                    MASHPEE TOWN HALL 
                                                                            16 GREAT NECK ROAD NORTH 
                                                                                     MASHPEE, MA 02649 

 

*Broadcast Live on Local Cable Channel 8*  
Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee Website:  https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel-8 

 

6 p.m. – Convene Joint Meeting with the Planning Board in Open Session  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

 Presentation of the Draft Housing Production Plan: Town Planner Evan Lehrer; Barrett Planning Group 
Adjourn Joint Meeting with the Planning Board 
 
MINUTES 
Discussion and Approval of the Following Minutes: Monday, December 4, 2023 Regular Session 
APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS     

 6:40 pm Public Hearing – Modification of Weekday Entertainment License (including Saturday) of Elevated Crust, 
LLC dba Wicked Restaurant 35F South Street Mashpee 

 Discussion and Approval of Modification of Weekday Entertainment License (including Saturday) of Elevated 
Crust, LLC dba Wicked Restaurant 35F South Street Mashpee 

 Discussion and Possible Approval of Sending a Letter of Support for the Proposal Submitted by the Association to 
Preserve Cape Cod (APCC) for NOAA’s “Coastal Habitat Restoration and Resilience Grants for Tribes and 
Underserved Communities” 

 Presentation and Discussion of Visitor Center at 966 Falmouth Road: Friends of the National Wildlife Refuge 
 Discussion and Approval of Official Names for Mashpee Ancient Burial Grounds: Mashpee Historical Commission 
 Certification of Hiring Process of Firefighter/ Paramedic: Blake Wilson 
 Public Comment  

 
COMMUNICATIONS & CORRESPONDENCE 
NEW BUSINESS 

 Discussion and Approval of the Following Resignations:  
Human Services Committee: Member at Large (Term Expires June 30, 2024) Sam MacDonald 
Sewer Commission: Member at Large (Term Expires June 30, 2026) Erin Copeland 

 Discussion and Approval of Reappointment: Barnstable County HOME Consortium Council, 
Term February 1, 2024 – January 31, 2027: Gary Shuman 

 
ADDITIONAL TOPICS  
(This space is reserved for topics that the Chair did not reasonably anticipate would be discussed)  
 
LIAISON REPORTS  
WATER QUALITY UPDATES 
 
TOWN MANAGER UPDATES 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel-8


2 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

Present: Selectman John J. Cotton, Selectman Thomas F. O’Hara, Selectman Carol A. Sherman, 

  Selectman David W. Weeden, Selectman Michaela A. Wyman-Colombo 

  Town Manager Rodney C. Collins 

  Assistant Town Manager Wayne E. Taylor 

 

  Meeting Called to Order by Chairman Cotton at 6:00 p.m. 

  Mashpee Town Hall, Waquoit Meeting Room 

 

 

Presentation of the Draft Housing Production Plan: Town Planner Evan Lehrer; Barrett Planning Group: 

 

The Select Board conducted an introductory meeting with Evan Lehrer, Town Planner/Community 

Development Director and Alexis Lanzillotta, Senior Planner of the Barrett Planning Group LLC to review the 

updated draft Housing Production Plan (HPP) with members of the Planning Board. 

 

In attendance were Planning Board members; Karen D. Faulkner, Mary Waygan, Michael R. Richardson, 

Dennis Balzarini, and Robert Hansen, associate member. 

 

When adopted the document will be forwarded to the Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities 

(EOHLC) for approval.  The goal is to submit the Housing Production Plan to the EOHLC by the end of 

January 2024. 

 

The statewide goal under 40B is to have at least 10% of year-round housing units in every municipality deed-

restricted as affordable to low-or moderate-income households.  As of June 2023, 4.66 percent of Mashpee’s 

year-round housing stock meets this requirement.  

 

The Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) is a list compiled by the Executive Office of Housing & Livable 

Communities formerly referred to as the Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD). 

To be listed on SHI, housing units must be deed-restricted as affordable to households at or below 80% HUD 

Area Median Family Income (HAMFI). 

 

80% HAMFI for a household size of 1 is at or below $64,450.  For a household size of 2, the 80% HAMFI is at 

or below $73,560. A household size of 3 must be at or below $82,850.  Mashpee’s household sizes are smaller 

than those across the state and nation, but not unique to Cape Cod. 

 

A goal is to provide mixed housing types consistent with community and regional needs, provide for a range of 

year-round housing stock including rental, homeownership, and other occupancy arrangements. And, to 

determine implementation strategies, site identification; town-owned and other, as well as desired 

characteristics for development and opportunities for regional partnership. 

 

To meet the threshold for one-year certification of this plan, Mashpee would need to produce (37) new SHI-

eligible affordable housing units in a given calendar year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

Presentation of the Draft Housing Production Plan: Town Planner Evan Lehrer; Barrett Planning Group: 

(continued) 

 

Results of the Housing Production Plan survey identify and prioritize the quality of open waters, groundwater 

and drinking water 63.3% and attainable, affordable, and workforce housing 70% as serious needs.  This 

includes the desire for more single-family homes and multifamily options. 

 

Survey results voiced strong support for the redevelopment of existing buildings/properties into housing 80% 

and a requirement for developers of new housing units to dedicate a portion of those units to low/moderate 

income households 65.8%, remove regulatory barriers to mixed use in commercial districts 62.8% and height 

and density bonuses for inclusion of attainable, affordable workforce housing 60.1%. 

 

There is Town support to acquire additional open space 44.7%, and creating attainable affordable housing and 

workforce housing 68.6% with Town investments.  A community center is also desired 31.5%. 

 

In 2022 the median sales price for a single-family home in Mashpee was $675,000.  57% of the respondents 

indicated they could not afford to purchase a home in Mashpee for this price.  The fair market rents for a          

1-bedroom $1,553, a 2-bedroom $2,044 are deemed affordable by 47% of those responding. 

 

Important housing initiatives include helping people to stay in affordable year-round housing, ensuring that new 

housing is sustainably built, helping those to stay in the community as they age, and creating housing with a 

mix or price ranges.  Barriers to affordable housing in Mashpee include; cost, price, availability, inventory, 

affordability, zoning, regulations, Airbnb, land and income and wages. 

 

In assessing the local housing stock, it was noted that 34% of Mashpee’s single-family homes are Cape style, 

28% are ranch, with 13% as colonial and contemporary.  51% of residents in Mashpee are over the age of 55 

years versus 31% in the state.  50% of residents over the age of 55 live in Barnstable County. 

 

Strategies outlined in the plan are reflected into (5) overarching groups: Affordable Housing Development & 

Preservation, Zoning for Housing Choice, Planning & Collaboration, Capacity and Advocacy & Support. 

 

The Affordable Housing Development & Preservation strategies contained in the plan were reviewed.  This 

includes making good use of Chapter 40B as a vehicle for creating affordable housing by;  

Collaborating with Mashpee Commons for the continued implementation of their Phase I and for future and 

additional project phases, 

Preparing local LIP guidelines to promote the program and outline the Town’s priorities, 

Provide 40B training and technical assistance, 

Continue to explore 209 Old Barnstable Road and VFW sites, 

Explore the creation of a non-profit Community Land Trust through a land donation or funding to facilitate 

more affordable homeownership opportunities, 

Require the inclusion of affordable units in all new residential development and redevelopment, 

Develop regulations to allow small affordable units on unbuildable lots under zoning provided wastewater 

policies are met, 

Explore opportunities to preserve existing modestly priced housing stock and creating deed restricted affordable 

units through a rehabilitation program, buy down of units upon resale and other options. 

 

 

 



4 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

Presentation of the Draft Housing Production Plan: Town Planner Evan Lehrer; Barrett Planning Group: 

(continued) 

 

Under Zoning for Choice there may be recommendations for change when exploring zoning mechanisms for 

increasing options for housing choice outside of the Town’s current Open Space Incentive Development Bylaw. 

This may prompt a revision under Planning & Collaboration as well. 

 

It is recommended the specifics of the survey and results of the workshop groups be incorporated into the 

Zoning for Choice strategy.  There is concern with respect to the impacts of climate change, and for polluted 

water bodies.  It was agreed the clean water perspective would be further reviewed with the Sewer Commission 

to see how the strategies fit into the Nitrogen Management Plan.   

 

It was also suggested the year-round population be further reviewed to accurately reflect the residency figures 

resulting from the pandemic. 

 

Adjourn Meeting with Planning Board. 

 

Motion made by Mr. Balzarini to adjourn the Planning Board meeting. 

Motion seconded by Ms. Waygan. 

VOTE:  5-0. Unanimous. 

 

 

MINUTES 

 

Monday, December 4, 2023 Regular Session:   

 

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to approve the Regular Session minutes of Monday,  

December 4, 2023 as presented. 

Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS 

     

Public Hearing – Modification of Weekday Entertainment License (including Saturday) of Elevated Crust, LLC 

dba Wicked Restaurant 35F South Street Mashpee: 

Discussion and Approval of Modification of Weekday Entertainment License (including Saturday) of Elevated 

Crust, LLC dba Wicked Restaurant 35F South Street Mashpee: 

 

Acting as the Local Licensing Authority, the Select Board opened the Public Hearing to consider modifications 

to the Weekday Entertainment License (including Saturday) of Elevated Crust LLC d/b/a Wicket Restaurant, 

35F South Street, Mashpee.  Modifications would allow one amplifier for a one-to-three-person band, live 

music and recorded music outdoors until 12:00 a.m. through December 31, 2023.   

 

To conform to posting requirements, the hearing notice was read aloud into the record. 

 

Kris Abney was in attendance to review the modification of the Weekday Entertainment License (including 

Saturday) with the Select Board.  Ms. Abney indicated the request is for live entertainment as presented for the 

remainder of 2023 only.  All other necessary paperwork is in order, and the 2024 Annual Alcoholic Beverage 

and Entertainment Licenses were approved at the last Select Board meeting in normal course. 

 

Being no comment, the Select Board motioned as follows; 

 

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to approve the Modification of Weekday Entertainment License 

(including Saturday) of Elevated Crust, LLC d/b/a Wicked Restaurant 35F South Street, Mashpee as 

stipulated until December 31, 2023. 

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

Discussion and Possible Approval of Sending a Letter of Support for the Proposal Submitted by the Association 

to Preserve Cape Cod (APCC) for NOAA’s “Coastal Habitat Restoration and Resilience Grants for Tribes and 

Underserved Communities”: 

 

Daniel Kent, Assistant Conservation Agent was in attendance to review a draft letter addressed to the National 

Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), and Department of 

Commerce dated December 11, 2023 expressing full support to the proposal submitted by the Association to 

Preserve Cape Cod (APCC). 

 

The grant proposal is for Coastal Habitat Restoration and Resilience Grants for Tribes and Underserved 

Communities.  The project would engage the Tribe to restore fish passage and habitat along the Mashpee River, 

one of the most important diadromous fish runs. The ecological restorations would ensure the water temperature 

would revert-back to normal levels to support the herring, sea brook trout and eel.  The project was noted to 

have three segments.  This includes repairs to the fish ladders and erosion work. 

 

The letter serves as the Town’s authorization to have the APCC submit this proposal and receive grant funds if 

awarded. The partnership will generate public awareness and feasibility studies. 

 

There is not cost to the Town to participate.  All segments are anticipated to be complete within three years. 

 

Motion made by Selectman Weeden to send the letter in full support to the APCC proposal for Coastal 

Habitat Restoration and Resilience Grants for Tribes and Underserved Communities. 

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

Presentation and Discussion of Visitor Center at 966 Falmouth Road: Friends of the National Wildlife Refuge: 

 

Friends of the National Wildlife Refuge Glen Davis and MaryKay Fox were in attendance with State 

Representative David Vieira to discuss the proposed visitor center planned to be cited at 966 Falmouth Road, 

Mashpee, Town-owned land adjacent to the South Cape Resort. 

 

Mr. Davis indicated the Mashpee National Wildlife Refuge was created in 1995.  It is the second largest open, 

accessible conservation land on Cape Cod, nearly 6,000 acres.  There are no visitors center or central place for 

the public to learn or enhance their experience with the Refuge. 

 

The property identified for the visitors center is 2.43 acres.  It consists of a paved parking lot.  Plans for the 

visitor center would include a greenhouse, a pavilion, pollinator gardens, solar power and alterations to the 

parking lot.  Maintaining the tree buffer would suppress noise emanating from Route 28.  There is a potential 

connection with the partner lands, and a great habitat management area without crossing the highway. 

 

The project has been endorsed by the Conservation Commission, and the Refuge Partnership.  CPA funds will 

be requested for the October Town Meeting for this project with additional funding to derive from existing 

partnerships and funds from the Friends of the National Wildlife Refuge. 

 

 



7 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS 

 

Presentation and Discussion of Visitor Center at 966 Falmouth Road: Friends of the National Wildlife Refuge: 

(continued) 

 

Town Manager Rodney C. Collins indicated he has had conversations with high regards for the visitor center 

proposal.  This was a valuable presentation, and it is endorsed by the Town Manager.  The property lies under 

the jurisdiction of the Select Board with no restrictions on the land. 

 

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to authorize the Town Manager to negotiate the proposed National 

Wildlife Refuge Visitor Center on behalf of the Select Board. 

Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

It was suggested the Select Board adopt policy to recognize wooded lots to allow the Tribe to burn and heat 

their homes as well as making a living selling and using wood.  It was recommended Town Counsel be 

consulted regarding the taking of wood, to include utilization by all residents of the Town of Mashpee. 

 

Discussion and Approval of Official Names for Mashpee Ancient Burial Grounds: Mashpee Historical 

Commission: 

 

Ava Costello, Chair of the Historical Commission was before the Select Board to gain approval to name the 

Ancient Burying Grounds historically correct with appropriate signage to identify the ancient cemeteries. 

 

The (4) Mashpee Ancient Burying Grounds include; 

 

Lakewood Cemetery – Historic correction:  Bourne Ancient Burial Ground 

Avant Cemetery – Historic correction:  Amos-Coombs-Avant Ancient Burial Ground 

Pocknett Cemetery – Historic correction: Pocknett Ancient Burial Ground 

Attaquin Cemetery – Historic correction: Attaquin Ancient Burial Ground  

 

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to approve the Historically correct names of the Ancient Burial 

Grounds with appropriate signage to identify these sites. 

Motion seconded by Selectman Weeden. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

There was a comment regarding the Boardley Cemetery situated on Cotuit Road in Mashpee.  Ms. Costello 

indicated she would research this cemetery. 

 

 

 

 



8 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

Certification of Hiring Process of Firefighter/ Paramedic: Blake Wilson: 

 

Correspondence was received from Fire Chief John F. Phelan dated December 6, 2023 relative to the phases of 

the entry-level selection process for the hiring of Firefighter/Paramedic Blake Wilson.  Town Manager Rodney 

C. Collins affirmed that all policies and practices consistent with the process have been adhered to.  In addition 

to the monitoring and review as required from the Department of Human Resources. 

 

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to certify the hiring process of Firefighter/Paramedic Blake Wilson 

for appointment effective December 19, 2023. 

Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

Public Comment: 

 

Lynne Barbee a resident of Surf Drive commented favorably on the proposed visitor center planned by the 

Friends of the Mashpee National Wildlife Refuge.  This will be a valuable resource for the Town of Mashpee. 

Ms. Barbee noted she has a copy of the brochure for the MNWR that was used by her family recently to walk 

the trails. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Discussion and Approval of the Following Resignations: 

  

Human Services Committee: Member at Large (Term Expires June 30, 2024) Sam MacDonald: 

 

The Select Board was in receipt of a letter of resignation dated October 20, 2023  from Sam MacDonald from 

the Human Services Committee. 

 

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to accept the letter of resignation of Sam MacDonald from the 

Human Services Committee sending a letter of regret to Mr. MacDonald for his service. 

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9 

 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

Sewer Commission: Member at Large (Term Expires June 30, 2026) Erin Copeland: 

 

A letter of resignation was received from Erin Copeland dated December 11, 2023 from the Sewer Commission. 

 

Motion made by Selectman Weeden to accept the resignation of Erin Copeland from the Sewer 

Commission sending a letter of gratitude to Ms. Copeland for her service. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

Discussion and Approval of Reappointment: Barnstable County HOME Consortium Council, 

Term February 1, 2024 – January 31, 2027: Gary Shuman: 

 

Correspondence was received from the Barnstable County HOME Consortium Advisory Counsel dated 

November 29, 2023 announcing that Mashpee’s member representative, Gary Shuman’s term is due to expire 

on January 31, 2024. 

 

Motion made by Selectman Sherman to reappoint Gary Shuman to the Barnstable County HOME 

Advisory Counsel from February 1, 2024 through January 31, 2027. 

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

LIAISON REPORTS  

 

Community Preservation Committee:  The CPC interviewed (3) candidates for the (2) At Large vacancies at 

their December 14, 2023 meeting.  The candidates were well-qualified.  It is the recommendation of the CPC to 

support the Select Board, the appointing authority for this position.  It was suggested that a standardized list of 

questions be presented to the applicants for the purpose of consistency. 

 

Intermunicipal Agreement:  The Tri-party Intermunicipal Agreement between the Towns of Mashpee, 

Sandwich and Falmouth is underway.  The Town Manager’s are currently working with their respective Town 

Counsel’s on the matter of shared watersheds.  The MassDEP has extended the date from requiring the 

incorporation of the Best Available Nitrogen Reducing Technology (BANRT) in septic systems serving new 

construction in designated Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Areas to July 8, 2024. 

 

Open Space and Recreation Plan:  An application has been submitted to the Community Preservation 

Committee to fund the update of the Town’s Open Space and Recreation Plan.  Andrew McManus, 

Conservation Agent is the fiscal administrator for this project.  Additional letters of support have been received 

from the Environmental Oversight Committee, the Department of Natural Resources, the Town 

Planner/Community Development Director and Conservation Committee.  Updating the Local Comprehensive 

Plan will allow the Town to leverage state funding. 

 

 



10 

 

 

Mashpee Select Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2023 

 

LIAISON REPORTS 

 

Mashpee Chamber of Commerce.  The holiday parade was another successful event for the Town of Mashpee. 

 

TOWN MANAGER UPDATES 

 

Town Hall Closure:  The Mashpee Town Hall will be closed on December 25, 2023, December 26, 2023 for the 

Christmas Holiday and on January 1, 2024 in observance of New Years Day. 

 

KC Coombs School Grant:  The KC Coombs School received a commercial equipment rebate in the amount of 

$262,050.  Catherine Laurent, Director of Public Works was recognized for this initiative. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion made by Selectman O’Hara to adjourn at 7:35 p.m. 

Motion seconded by Selectman Wyman-Colombo. 

VOTE: 5-0.  Unanimous.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Selectman Sherman, yes 

 Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Wyman-Colombo, yes Opposed, none 

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

       Kathleen M. Soares 

       Secretary to the Select Board 

  



kleslie
Typewritten Text
ANR:  Triple M. Management Co.

kleslie
Typewritten Text



























kleslie
Typewritten Text
PHN:  7:10 PM WARRANT ARTICLE 28

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 
 

1 
 

MASHPEE PLANNING BOARD  

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 

*Broadcast Live on Local Cable Channel 18* 

*Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee Website:  https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel-18* 

 
Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40A, Section 5 the Mashpee Planning Board will hold 
a public hearing on Wednesday, April 17, 2024 at 7:10 p.m. from the Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck 
Road North in the Waquoit Meeting Room to review the following zoning articles proposed for action at 
the May 6, 2024 Town Meeting.  
 
Warrant Article 28: 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 174-25 (B)(18) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw Table of 
Use regulations by adding the letters “SP” in the column identified as I-1 as follows: 
 
 
This Article would authorize Indoor Recreational Facilities in the I-1 Zoning District by Special Permit.  
Currently, indoor recreation facilities are authorized in only the Commercial Zoning Districts. 
 
 
The full text of these Articles may be reviewed in the Office of the Town Manager/Select Board and 
Planning Department. 
 
Submitted by: 

Karen D. Faulkner, Chair 
Mashpee Planning Board 
 
Publication dates:  March 29, 2024 
       April 5, 2024 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel-18*


kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
PHN:  7:10 PM 474 MAIN ST/31 ASHUMET RD

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text







0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 1.8 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.7 4.1 4.0 3.2 2.2 1.4 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.5 1.5 2.2 2.1 5.6 9.9 8.8 6.6 5.2 3.6 2.2 1.1 0.6 0.3

0.0 0.1 0.3 1.1 3.1 6.0 6.5 14.2 12.9 11.2 8.2 5.2 2.6 1.3 0.7

0.2 0.6 1.7 4.8 12.2 19.7 16.7 10.0 4.6 2.0

0.7 1.5 3.8 8.7 14.5 5.8 2.2

1.8 2.8

0.4 2.5

0.3 0.4 2.8 17.8 4.6

0.2 0.5 1.4 3.2 20.8

0.3 0.7 1.9 3.6 19.8

0.2 0.4 0.7 2.0 2.3 0.5

0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3

0.1 0.1



kleslie
Typewritten Text
NEW BUSINESS

kleslie
Typewritten Text



3/22/24, 3:00 PM Mail - Karyn Leslie - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADcwZTM4NjNiLWRhOWYtNGExNi04MjA4LTZlMzk1YTZiMDA4NQAQAF0abXKmM5lLiub5OK5%2B… 1/2

South Cape Estates Update on Road Takings

Terrie Cook <tmcook@mashpeema.gov>
Fri 3/22/2024 1:40 PM
To: Karyn Leslie <kleslie@mashpeema.gov> 
Cc: Evan Lehrer <ELehrer@mashpeema.gov> 

From: Catherine Laurent <claurent@mashpeema.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 11:33 AM
To: Rodney C. Collins <rccollins@mashpeema.gov>; Wayne E. Taylor <wtaylor@mashpeema.gov>
Subject: South Cape Estates - Pe��on Ar�cle for Conversion from Private to Town Roads
 
Good morning.

As discussed, the roads in South Cape Estates are located in their en�rety in the floodplain.  DEP
confirmed that the project would have to file a No�ce of Intent and would have to comply with their
stormwater standards.  The proposed changes to the DEP regula�on are increasing these standards.   

I spoke with Raul Lizardi-Rivera, Director of Engineering for Cape & Islands Engineering to ask his opinion
on poten�al cost.  While I included a budget number of $800,000 for drainage improvements, he
concurs that it is difficult at this point to know whether the $800,000 would be sufficient as engineering
design plans have not been prepared.   

I am therefore recommending that this ar�cle be indefinitely postponed.  The postponement would
allow for a new es�mate to be prepared and a new public hearing with property owners.  As you know,
the es�mate provided by the Town is the maximum cost that can be included in a be�erment to the
property owners.  Any construc�on costs above this amount would have to be paid by the Town.  While
there will s�ll not be engineering design plans for the drainage (the 1st pe��on does not fund these
plans), the es�mate can be adjusted to allow addi�onal funds for permi�ng and engineering design as
well as a higher con�ngency for the project to cover any unan�cipated costs.

Please let me know if you have any ques�ons on this recommenda�on.

Catherine

Catherine Laurent, Director
Mashpee DPW
350 Mee�nghouse Road
Mashpee, MA 02649
508-539-1420
508-539-3894 (fax)
www.mashpeema.gov

Terrie M. Cook, MCPPO | Administra�ve Assistant to the Town Manager
Office of the Town Manager
16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, MA  02649
Office:  508.539.1401 | Fax:  508.539.1142
Email: tmcook@mashpeema.gov
 

http://www.mashpeema.gov/














Invoice

Invoice Date: 3/27/2024
Invoice #: 2024-2179

Bill To:

Mashpee Planning Board
ATTN: Evan Lehrer, Town Planner
Mashpee Town Hall
16 Great Neck Road N
Mashpee, MA  02649

Project & Location:

Country Club Estates
 - Construction Inspection Services

Pesce Engineering & Associates, Inc.
43 Porter Lane

West Dennis, MA 02670

Due Date: 4/29/2024

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Thank You for Your Business!

Please make checks payable to "Pesce Engineering"

Phone:(cell) 508-333-7630   Ed@PesceEng.com

Description Hrs./Qty. Rate ($) Amount ($)

ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 24 June 2023 - 25 March 2024
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Travel & Site visit to review existing conditions, Meetings with Contractor (Will Dumas),
view construction progress & erosion controls; Inspect Gravel Base placement - 5 Trips: 24
July, 6, 23 & 19 Oct, and 2 Nov  2023

11.0 160.00 1,760.00

Review of gravel Base Sieve Analysis; Travel and Site Visits to Complete Inspections of
Gravel Base placement; Witness compaction tests & Inspection Base Course Paving
Operations  - 5 Trips: 3, 8, 16 ,28 & 29 Nov 2023

13.5 160.00 2,160.00

REIMBURSABLES
----------------------------------------------------
Mileage expense - 44 Miles Roundtrip for Site Visits - 10 site visits, with 4 trips shared with
2 sites = (5 X 44mi.) + (5 X 44mi./2 sites) = 330 mi.

330.0 0.57 188.10

$4,108.10

$4,108.10

$0.00



Invoice

Invoice Date: 3/25/2024
Invoice #: 2024-2176

Bill To:

Mashpee Planning Board
ATTN: Evan Lehrer, Town Planner
Mashpee Town Hall
16 Great Neck Road N
Mashpee, MA  02649

Project & Location:

Cranberry Point - Willowbend
(275 Quinaquisset Ave.)
 - Engineering Review Services

Pesce Engineering & Associates, Inc.
43 Porter Lane

West Dennis, MA 02670

Due Date: 4/25/2024

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Thank You for Your Business!

Please make checks payable to "Pesce Engineering"

Phone:(cell) 508-333-7630   Ed@PesceEng.com

Description Hrs./Qty. Rate ($) Amount ($)

ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:  24 June 2023 - 24 February 2024
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Travel & Attendance at Planning Bd. hearing - 20 Sep 2023 2.50 160.00 400.00

Review of Site Plans and Drainage Calculations for site plans revised to show 12-unit
layout - 30 Oct 2023, Review of LEC letter (dated 16 Nov), and preparation of updated
review comments via e-mail - 6 Dec, Travel, Preparation and attendance at Pl. Bd. hearing
(via Zoom) - 6 Dec, Travel & Attendance at Pl. Bd. Hearing - 20 Dec

10.50 160.00 1,680.00

Review of revised site plans (dated 16 Feb 2024) - 19 Feb;  Review and responses to
e-mails with Matt Eddy - 19-21 Feb 2024;  Attendance at Pl. Bd. hearing (via Zoom) - 21
Feb

4.00 160.00 640.00

Attendance at Pl. Bd. hearing (via Zoom) - 20 March 2024 2.75 160.00 440.00

REIMBURSABLES
----------------------------------------------------
Mileage expense - 2 Town Hall meetings @ 42 miles Roundtrip 84.00 0.57 47.88
Plan Copies 11" X 17" color - Oct 23 and Feb 24 sets 24.00 2.65 63.60
Document Printing (8.5" X 11" B&W and Color) - Drainage Report 82.00 0.50 41.00

$3,312.48

$3,312.48

$0.00



Invoice

Invoice Date: 3/27/2024
Invoice #: 2024-2182

Bill To:

Mashpee Planning Board
ATTN: Evan Lehrer, Town Planner
Mashpee Town Hall
16 Great Neck Road N
Mashpee, MA  02649

Project & Location:

New Seabury - Phase IV & Others
 - Construction Inspection &
   Project Review Services

Pesce Engineering & Associates, Inc.
43 Porter Lane

West Dennis, MA 02670

Due Date: 3/29/2024

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Thank You for Your Business!

Please make checks payable to "Pesce Engineering"

Phone:(cell) 508-333-7630   Ed@PesceEng.com

Description Hrs./Qty. Rate ($) Amount ($)

ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 25 March 2023 - 25 March 2024
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
(The following services have been provided in support of review of the New Seabury
Cottages, Phase III & Phase IV, and the Fairway Homes at Seaside  Projects)

Review of e-mails regarding multiple project Bond Escrow Funds Release Request, and
response - 13 Nov 2023;  Travel & Site Inspection of multiple roads and project areas with
Mr. Nick Galanis - 16 Nov 2023

4.75 160.00 760.00

Attendance at Planning Board Meeting (via Zoom) to update Pl. Bd. on New Seabury Site
Inspection and remaining work items - 6 Dec;  Review of e-mail correspondence from new
Seabury (Tamara Joyce) & Responses regarding final punch list items - 7 & 20 Dec 2023,
25 Jan 2024; Phone call with Nick Galanis regarding closeout of Punch List Items - 24 Jan
2024

2.50 160.00 400.00

Review of Applicant Letter and correspondence regarding calculations for Escrow Funds
Release Request - 5 & 6 Feb 2024,;  Call with Town Planner, and preparation of Bond
Release recommendation letter for New Seabury Projects, and preparation & Attendance
at Pl. Bd. Hearing  - 7 Feb 2024

3.50 160.00 560.00

REIMBURSABLES
----------------------------------------------------
Mileage expense - 52 Miles Roundtrip for Site Visit (1 trip) 52.00 0.57 29.64

$1,749.64

$1,749.64

$0.00



Invoice

Invoice Date: 3/27/2024
Invoice #: 2024-2178

Bill To:

Mashpee Planning Board
ATTN: Evan Lehrer, Town Planner
Mashpee Town Hall
16 Great Neck Road N
Mashpee, MA  02649

Project & Location:

Ockway Highlands
 - Construction Inspection Svcs.

Pesce Engineering & Associates, Inc.
43 Porter Lane

West Dennis, MA 02670

Due Date: 4/29/2024

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Thank You for Your Business!

Please make checks payable to "Pesce Engineering"

Phone:(cell) 508-333-7630   Ed@PesceEng.com

Description Hrs./Qty. Rate ($) Amount ($)

ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 1 November 2023 - 25 March 2024
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Call with Jacques Morin & Chris Lynch regarding paving work performed on Carriage Rd &
Blue Castle Dr. - 29 Nov 2023

0.5 160.00 80.00

Review of e-mail comments from abutters regarding Applicant request to delete sidewalk
from subdivision; Travel, preparation & attendance at Pl. Bd. Hearing - 20 Dec 2023

2.5 160.00 400.00

Coordination with DPW, and travel & site visit with DPW & Jacques Morin regarding
existing detention basin conditions and maintenance issues - 8 Feb 2024

2.5 160.00 400.00

REIMBURSABLES
----------------------------------------------------
Mileage expense - 42 Miles Roundtrip for Site Visits/PB Meetings - 2 trips  = 210 miles 84.0 0.57 47.88

$927.88

$927.88

$0.00



Invoice

Invoice Date: 3/27/2024
Invoice #: 2024-2181

Bill To:

Mashpee Planning Board
ATTN: Evan Lehrer, Town Planner
Mashpee Town Hall
16 Great Neck Road N
Mashpee, MA  02649

Project & Location:

Willow Circle
 - Engineering Peer Review
  and Construction Inspection Svcs.

Pesce Engineering & Associates, Inc.
43 Porter Lane

West Dennis, MA 02670

Due Date: 4/29/2024

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Thank You for Your Business!

Please make checks payable to "Pesce Engineering"

Phone:(cell) 508-333-7630   Ed@PesceEng.com

Description Hrs./Qty. Rate ($) Amount ($)

ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 2 November 2023-25 March 2024
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Preparation & Attendance at Pl. Bd. Hearing (via Zoom) to update Board on subdivision
construction statues, and work inspected/completed - 6 Dec 2023

0.5 160.00 80.00

REIMBURSABLES
----------------------------------------------------
None

$80.00

$80.00

$0.00



4/12/24, 1:11 PM Mail - Karyn Leslie - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADcwZTM4NjNiLWRhOWYtNGExNi04MjA4LTZlMzk1YTZiMDA4NQAQAM%2F2CjsZWaxBqPlejZXH… 1/2

Fwd: Request for LOS- Santuit Pond Town Landing

Evan Lehrer <ELehrer@mashpeema.gov>
Fri 4/12/2024 12:29 PM
To: Karyn Leslie <kleslie@mashpeema.gov> 

2 attachments (250 KB)
Mashpee MVP FY25 MVP Grant LOS Template.docx; Santuit Pond - Concept Design .jpg;

See if Karen is willing to add to agenda for Ashley

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Ashley Fisher <Afisher@mashpeema.gov>
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 12:10:37 PM
To: Jason Steiding <jason.steiding@mwtribe-nsn.gov>; Andrew McManus <amcmanus@mashpeema.gov>; Daniel
Kent <dkent@mashpeema.gov>; Catherine Laurent <claurent@mashpeema.gov>; Go�lieb, Andrew
<argo�lieb@gmail.com>; Surgeon-Rogers, Tonna-Marie (DCR) <tonna-marie.surgeon-rogers@mass.gov>; Evan
Lehrer <ELehrer@mashpeema.gov>; Karen Faulkner <kdfaulknerlaw@gmail.com>; David W. Weeden
<DWeeden@mashpeema.gov>; Paul.Colombo@gmail.com <Paul.Colombo@gmail.com>
Subject: Request for LOS- Santuit Pond Town Landing
 
Good afternoon,
 
The  Mashpee Department of  Natural Resources (DNR) intends to present a proposal to the Municipal
Vulnerability Preparedness Program for the upcoming phase of  the Santuit Town Landing - Construction
and Community Outreach project. This initiative aims to implement various stormwater Best Management
Practices (BMPs) onsite, establish pollinator gardens/rain gardens, conduct wetland restoration, develop a
community resiliency trail with educational components and species identification, and incorporate cultural
art installations with significant involvement from the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe.
 
Enclosed, you'll find the Concept Design for the area along with a Letter of  Support template. The deadline
for proposal submission is swiftly approaching on April 26th.
 
We sincerely hope that your department or agency can provide the DNR with a letter of  support to
strengthen this year's grant proposal. We are eagerly anticipating the completion of  this project for a part of
the Town and pond that truly deserves such enhancements.
 
Respectfully,

Ashley K. Fisher | Director 
Department of Natural Resources 
31 Mercan�le Way Unit 6 , Mashpee, MA  02649
Office:  508.539.1410 | Cell:  508.364.3358
Email: afisher@mashpeema.gov
 

https://aka.ms/AAb9ysg


 



Mashpee MVP FY25 MVP Grant LOS Template: 
 
 
 
Kara Runsten 
Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness Program Manager  
Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs 
100 Cambridge Stree, Suite 900  
Boston, MA 02114  
 
RE: Letter of Support for the Town of Mashpee FY25 MVP Action Grant Application   
 
Dear Ms. Runsten:  
 
The Town of Mashpee is requesting additional MVP Action Grant funding for implementation 
(bidding and construction) of improvements to the public boat ramp site at Santuit Pond.  This 
project is a continuation of the Santuit Pond Resiliency Project previously funded through earlier 
MVP grant rounds.  

  
In addition to improved and more sustainable public access to Santuit Pond, the improvements for 
the property include new green infrastructure to capture and treat stormwater generated from the 
landing as well as the adjacent public roadway, Timberlane Drive, enhanced vegetated buffers along 
the shoreline, and restoration of the on-site wetlands. The green infrastructure and other water 
quality improvements will help address and minimize the negative impact to Santuit Pond and other 
sensitive wetland resource areas from pollutants contained within stormwater. 

  
ORGANIZATION SPECIFICS: WATER QUALITY; STORMWATER; BMPS; GREEN 
INFATRUCTURE ETC.  

 
 

The DEPARTMENT OR ORGANIZATION looks forward to continuing to work with the 
project team on the bidding and construction phase of this project and to make these much-needed 
improvements a reality. 
 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
NAME  
TITLE  
EMAIL/PHONE 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Good morning, 
 
The Department of Natural Resources (DNR) intends to present a proposal to the Municipal 
Vulnerability Preparedness Program for the upcoming phase of the Santuit Town Landing - 
Construction and Community Outreach project. This initiative aims to implement various 
stormwater Best Management Practices (BMPs) onsite, establish pollinator gardens/rain gardens, 
conduct wetland restoration, develop a community resiliency trail with educational components and 
species identification, and incorporate cultural art installations with significant involvement from the 
Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe. 
 
Enclosed, you'll find the Concept Design for the area along with a Letter of Support template. The 
deadline for proposal submission is swiftly approaching on April 26th. 
 
We sincerely hope that your department or agency can provide the DNR with a letter of support to 
strengthen this year's grant proposal. We are eagerly anticipating the completion of this project for a 
part of the Town and pond that truly deserves such enhancements. 
 
Respectfully, 
 



kleslie
Typewritten Text
OLD BUSINESS

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 1 

PLANNING BOARD DECISION 
WILLOWBEND SPECIAL PERMIT MODFICATION 

275 Quinaquisset Avenue – Cranberry Point 
 

1. Proposal. 
 
Reference is made to a Special Permit Decision issued by the Mashpee Planning Board, dated April 15, 1987 
and recorded with the Barnstable County District Registry of Deeds at Book 5707, Page 290, as amended from 
time to time (hereinafter the “Special Permit”).  By decision dated August 7, 1991, the Special Permit was 
transferred to Bent Twig Limited Partnership whose interest was subsequently assigned to Willowbend 
Development Corporation, and then to Willowbend Country Club, Inc. Most recently the Special Permit was 
transferred to Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC who is hereinafter referred to as the “Aapplicant”.  The 
Special Permit authorizes construction of a residential / golf course community known as Willowbend south of 
Route 28 in east Mashpee (“the project”). 
 
The applicant proposes to modify the special permit and site plans to allow for the construction of 12 single-
family cottage-style condominiums on properties addressed as 275 Quinquissett Avenue and, Mashpee, MA 
02649 (Assessor’s Map 69 Block 169) totaling 220,650 square feet (+/-) or 5.065 acres. The units proposed 
represent a reduction of 2 units that were removed from the proposal to accommodate a more substantial 
naturally vegetated buffer between the limits of development and Quinaquissett Avenue consistent with most 
of the WIllowbend project. Additionally, the original submittal included a “village green” along the easterly 
portion of the property which was removed from consideration to minimize impacts to wetlands along that 
portion of the site. 
 
The subject property is not currently included within Willowbend’s special permit area and is improved with a 

single-family dwelling, sheds, a septic system, paved driveway, and lawn area. The existing dwelling is 
proposed for demolition. The existing development on these lots is concentrated around the 
dwelling, with extensive forested uplands to the west and forested uplands and wetlands to the east 
of the driveway/dwelling. Willowbend proposes to annex the subject parcel into the WIllowbend Special 
Permit area as allowed pursuant to 174-24(C)(9)(g) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaws which is intended to reduce 
the overall density of the project by not increasing the overall number of dwelling units authorized by the 
special permit nor decreasing the amount of protected open space. 
 
The subject property is bounded by Quinaquisset Avenue to the north and surrounded by cranberry bogs to 
the west and south constructed around the Quaker Run, a perennial stream, which flows south through the 
cranberry bogs and the golf course. The project will tie into existing utilities in Quinaquisset Avenue, including 
the Willowbend Wastewater Treatment Facility and no new septic systems are proposed. The project further 
incorporates a stormwater collection system that includes a new sediment forebay along Quinaquisset Avenue 
to offer pre-treatment to stormwater runoff currently entering the wetlands system without any pre-
treatment. 
 
The 12 units proposed would contribute to the overall dwelling unit maximum of 287 dwelling units defined in 
the Special Permit. Subsequent to the most recent modification of the Willowbend Special Permit pertaining to 
Willow Circle (See Barnstable Country Registry of Deeds Book 34860 Page 149) the total number of dwelling 
units in the project were found to be 274. The applicant provided documentation during the Planning Board’s 
review of this application that demonstrated that one property owner in Willowbend purchased two building 

Commented [PC1]: Should be “The Applicant” ? 

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
TOWN COUNSELCOMMENTS

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 2 

lots to build one dwelling and, as such, the dwelling unit count stands at 273. Inclusion of these 12 units would 
increase the total number of dwelling units in the project area to 275. Willowbend’s special permit further 
specifies a maximum number of bedrooms allowed within the project area of 853. The Planning Board 
contends alleged, and the applicant has acknowledged, that the number of bedrooms currently within the 
permit area exceeds the 853 limit.  
 
2. Jurisdiction. 
 
The application was made and this decision has been issued by the Mashpee Planning Board pursuant to 
Section 174-24(C)(9) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw as it existed on XX/XX/XXXX the date on which this special 
permit modification was approved/denied by the Mashpee Planning Board.  As the proposal does not increase 
square footage of any use by more than 10%, the provisions of Section 174-24.C.(9)(d) of said bylaw provide 
that the land involved in this application is subject to the dimensional and other relevant provisions of the 
Zoning Bylaw as it existed on November 6, 1985, the date on which a preliminary subdivision plan was filed on 
the property, freezing the zoning in effect at the time that this special permit was originally issued on April 15, 
1987.  Expansion of the project area is permitted under Section 174-24.C.(9)(g) of the Zoning Bylaw if approved 
by the Planning Board.  With regard to the prohibition contained in Section 174-24.C.(9)(f) on increasing the 
number of units in a development, the proposed 285 units are less than the 338 originally authorized by the 
special permit and less than the 287 maximum established currently defined in the 1991 special permit 
modification recorded in Book 8229 Page 264.  
 
The application and this decision are project is also subject to the applicable provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 40A, 
Section 9. 
 
3. Chronology.   
 
Application for this Special Permit Modification and accompanying site development plans wereas filed with 
the Town Clerk and Planning Board on February 1, 2023.  A hearing was opened before the Mashpee Planning 
Board at the Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, Massachusetts on March 1, 2023 at 
7:10 p.m.  Notice was duly given to abutters in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A.  
Notice was also given by publication in the Mashpee Enterprise, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
Town of Mashpee, on February 10, 2023 and February 17, 2023.   
 
On March 20, 2024, the Planning Board voted to close the hearing. On April 3, 2024 the Planning Board 
commenced its deliberations the deliberative process and made the following findings outlined below in 
Section 4, Findings, below. Upon a motion to grant the special permit modification subject to the conditions 
enumerated below made by ____________ and seconded by __________ the members of the Board were 
recorded voting as follows: Members…. were recorded as voting in favor of approval of the proposed 
modification; Mmembers….. were recorded as voting against approval of the proposed modification.  The 
motion to approve the special permit modification passed/failed. 
 
4. Findings. 
 

a. The proposed modification involves less than 10% increase in the area of any use and is therefore, 
under the provisions of Section 174-24.C.(9)(d) of the Zoning Bylaw, subject to the dimensional and 
other relevant provisions of the Zoning Bylaw as it existed on November 6, 1985, the date on which a 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 3 

preliminary subdivision plan was filed on the property, freezing the zoning in effect at the time that 
this special permit was originally issued on April 15, 1987.  At that time, the property was in an R-3M 
zoning district.  This subdivision is proposed under the cluster subdivision zoning regulations applicable 
to the project on that date. 

 
b. The proposed modification lies outside of the “Original Project” area but within the project area as 

expanded by vote of the Planning Board in Willowbend Special Permit Modification #27 pursuant to 
Section 174-24.C.(9)(g) of the Zoning Bylaw, increasing said area to 330.14 acres in Mashpee and 3.39 
acres in Barnstable.   

 
c. Under the provisions of Sections 9.3 and 9.4 of the applicable 1985 Zoning By-law, a minimum of 92.0 

acres of open space was required within the “original project area”.  Current open space is 237.9 acres, 
well in excess of the required acreage. 

 
d. Under the 1985 special permit, the project would have been allowed 341 residential units and was 

permitted for 338 units. In 1991, the Permit was modified to reduce the total number of units to 287. 
The current proposal increases the number of approved units to 285 out of 287 maximum allowed 
units., which Tthe Board finds this increase to be permissible under Section 174-24.C.(9)(f), as it is less 
than the originally allowed 338 units and less than the currently allowed 287, and it hereby approves 
said increase. 

 
e. Under the 1985 special permit, which was affirmed in a 1991 special permit modification, the project is 

allowed no more than 853 bedrooms within the project area. The Planning Board finds, and the 
applicant has acknowledged, that there are currently more than 853 bedrooms in the project area and 
that there were at least 855 existing bedrooms on August 2, 2023, as calculated by the Town Planner 
utilizing Assessor’s data and Building Department records. The Planning Board finds that the applicant 
is not in compliance with this bedroom limit condition of the special permit and it has established a 
further new series of conditions to mitigate the impacts of the excess additional bedrooms in existence 
and planned, including those proposed by this application. Those conditions are outlined below in 
Section 5: Conditions, below. 

 
f. The project satisfies the requirements of Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40A, in that it complies 

with the general purposes and intent of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw on the applicable dates.   
 
g. The original special permit (1987) is conditioned on maintaining a minimum 100 foot buffer strip from 

either edge of Sampson's Mill Road and Quinaquisset Avenue left in its existing vegetative state, 
except for entrance areas, golf cart underpass and golf course areas shown on the filed plans. The 
submitted site plans for Cranberry Point indicate a buffer strip totaling 65 feet between the first 
condominium and the edge of Quinaquisset Avenue which is less than the 100 feet required. The 
Board finds that section 9.352 of the Zoning Bylaws in place at the time of the original special permit 
approval stated: 

 
“A buffer strip of land equal in width to the front yard requirement of the underlying zoning 
district shall be created along the entire perimeter of the parcel. The perimeter shall be 
unbroken except for access roads. The buffer strip shall be considered part of the open space. 
The buffer strip shall be maintained in its natural state or landscaped if in the opinion of the 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 4 

Planning Board it is necessary to protect privacy of adjoining land owners and shall not be 
used for parking or organized recreational activities. The Planning Board may require a buffer 
strip in excess of the minimum requirement depending on the use of adjoining land.”  

 
The Planning Board finds that a reduced 65 foot65-foot buffer strip is greater than 40 feet, which was 
the minimum width of the front yard requirement applicable under the 1985 bylaw, which would 
adequately protect the privacy of adjoining land owners and is not being used for parking or organized 
recreational activities. The Board finds that the 65 foot65-foot buffer strip shown on the site 
development plans does not derogate from the purpose and intent of the bylaw or the special permit 
and exceeds the minimum requirements of the applicable zoning criteria. Accordingly, the Board and 
hereby authorizes a 65 foot buffer between the edge of Quinaquisset Avenue and the limits of 
development on the subject parcel.  

 
h. The Board finds that Mashpee General Bylaws Chapter 108,: Flow Neutral, which limits present and 

future wastewater flows to the flows permitted from the property as of the effective date of the 
Mashpee Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP), July 1, 2015, applies to the subject 
property which limits present and future wastewater flows to the flows permitted from the property 
as of the effective date of the Mashpee Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP), July 
1, 2015. Chapter 108 establishes a 1 bedroom per 10,000 square feet of lot area limit for multifamily 
projects such as Cranberry Point. The subject parcel totals 220,650 square feet. As such, under the 
provisions of Chapter 108, the subject property is presumed to be limited to 22 bedrooms without 
relief from the Board of Health or Sewer Commission. 

 
i. The Board finds that the subject parcel and surrounding bog system contemplated in the applicant’s 

mitigation package are within or adjacent to areas mapped as moderate pre-contact archaeological 
sensitivity areas determined from a Town-wide pre-contact sensitivity survey conducted by the Public 
Archaeological Laboratory (PAL) from Pawtucket, RI. The Board accepted comment from the Mashpee 
Wampanoag Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) who expressed concern over any and all 
ground disturbing activities on the subject parcel and surrounding bog parcels under consideration for 
restoration due to the cultural and archaeological sensitivity of the area and the potential presence of 
to discover culturally sensitive artifacts and materials therein. 

 
j. The Board finds that the proposed stormwater sediment forebay proposed within the 65 foot buffer 

strip along Quinaquisset Avenue will capture and pre-treat stormwater before it enters the wetlands 
systems in and around the subject parcel.  

 
k. The submitted site plans were reviewed by the Planning Board’s consulting engineer, Ed Pesce, who 

provided written responses to the Planning Board dated February 27, 2023, October 13, 2023, and 
December 6, 2023. The Board finds that the applicant was responsive to the engineer’s comments and 
made satisfactory revisions to the submitted plans.  The Board accepts the recommendation of the 
consulting engineer’s to recommendation that said plans be  approvedal.  In his December 6, 2023 
correspondence letter transmitted as an email to Evan Lehrer, Community Development Director, the 
consulting engineer wrote: 

 
“The revised plans and associated documentation have addressed the majority of my previous 
engineering review comments. There are a few comments that still need to be resolved. 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 5 

However, these comments are relatively minor, and I believe can be resolved with direct 
coordination between myself and Matt Eddy of Baxter Nye. Subject to the discretion of the 
Board, I would recommend approval of these plans, with the condition that all the Pesce 
Engineering comments are satisfactorily addressed.” 

 
l. Due to changes made to the development plans to remove, to the maximum extent practicable, 

impacts to bordering vegetated wetland onsite updates to the drainage and grading plans need to be 
made to the satisfaction of the consulting engineer.  

 
m. The project on the subject parcel as well as the bog restoration contemplated in the plans fall within 

the jurisdiction of the Mashpee Conservation Commission and require the issuance of an order of 
conditions.  

 
n. The Board finds that the subject parcel is within the jurisdictional buffer of the Mashpee Conservation 

Commission. The 12 condominiums proposed on the subject parcel and the bog restoration 
contemplated in the plans require review and approval by the Conservation Commission. Additionally, 
the Board finds that, due to the subject parcel’s existence within the jurisdictional buffer of the 
Mashpee Conservation Commission the project is exempt from the requirements of the Chapter 175 
Mashpee Tree Preservation General Bylaw. 

 
o. In conformance with the provisions of Article VI, Section 174-24.C.(2) of the Zoning Bylaw, the Planning 

Board finds that the proposal, as conditioned hereby, will not adversely affect public health or safety, 
will not cause excessive demand on community facilities, will not significantly decrease surface or 
ground water quality or air quality, will not have significant adverse impact on wildlife habitat, 
estuarine systems, traffic flow, traffic safety, waterways, fisheries, public lands or neighboring 
properties, will not cause excessive levels of noise, vibration, electrical disturbance, radioactivity or 
glare, will not destroy or disrupt any species listed as rare, endangered or threatened by the 
Massachusetts Natural Heritage program or any known historic or archaeologic site, will not produce 
amounts of trash, refuse or debris in excess of the Town’s landfill and waste disposal capacities, will 
properly dispose of stumps, construction debris, hazardous materials and other wastes, will provide 
adequate off street parking, will not cause excessive erosion or cause increase runoff into neighboring 
properties or into any natural river, stream, pond or water body and will not otherwise be detrimental 
to the Town or the area. 

 
5. Conditions. 
 

a. The project shall be constructed in conformance with the following site plans: 
 

“Cranberry Point at Willowbend - Site Construction Plans, Mashpee, Massachusetts,” 
Prepared for Southworth Mashpee Properties, LLC, 130 Willowbend Drive, Mashpee, MA 
02649; Project Titled: Cranberry Point – 275 Quinaquisset Avenue, Mashpee, MA 02649; 
Prepared by Baxter Nye Engineering & Surveying, Hyannis, MA 02601, dated January 16, 2023 
consisting of 19 sheets as follows: 

 
C0.0  Cover Sheet  
C1.0  Legend and General Notes 

Commented [PC2]: Evan:  this language is somewhat 

confusing. Not clear  what further plan changes are to be 

required. 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 6 

CPP1.0  Certified Plot Plan 
C2.0  Existing Conditions  Plan 
C3.0  Master Layout Plan 
C3.1  Site Layout Plan – Sheet 1 of 2 
C3.2  Site Layout Plan – Sheet 2 of 2 
C3.3  Sight Distance Plan 
C-3.4  Truck Turning Template Plan 
C-4.0  Grading & Drainage Plan Sheet 1 of 2   
C-4.1  Grading & Drainage Plan Sheet 2 of 2   
 
C4.2  Grading Inset & Drainage Details 
C4.3 Drainage Notes 
C5.0 Utility Plan – Sheet 1 of 2 
C5.1 Utility Plan – Sheet 2 of 2 
C5.2 Proposed Driveway and Utility Profiles 
C6.0 Master Mitigation Plan 
C7.0 Details Plan 
C7.1 Details Plan 

 
b. The applicant shall submit updated and final grading and drainage plans to the Planning Board for its 

file to the satisfaction of the Planning Board’s consulting engineer. 
 
c. To mitigate the impacts of the existing and proposed  bedrooms that exist and that are proposed in 

the project that exceed the 853 bedroom special permit limit, the applicant shall: 
 

I.  Make a $100,000 cash contribution to the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust, payable  to be 
made upon issuance of the building permit for the first unit at Cranberry Point.  

II. Donate parcels 21, 22, and 23 shown on Mashpee Assessor’s Map 77, totaling just over one-
half an acre to the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust. 
 

d. The applicant shall comply demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the Chapter 108 Flow 
Neutral Bylaw to the satisfaction of the Sewer Commission or other relevant jurisdictional authority. 
Given the parcel’s size, 22 bedrooms are allowed on the parcel by right, but 48 bedrooms are 
proposed. Willowbend shall demonstrate compliance with the requirements of Chapter 108 to the 
satisfaction of the Sewer Commission by demonstrating one or more of the following: 

 
I. The total land area held in common throughout WIllowbend (that has not been conveyed to 

private property owners) area results in less than 1 bedroom per 10,000 square feet based on 
all available estimates of existing and planned bedrooms.  

II. Can restrict land area under the control of Willowbend for purposes of nitrogen aggregation if 
and when those regulations are promulgated by the Sewer Commission. Any land area 
restricted for this purpose should be in the same watershed. 

III. Obtain a variance from the Sewer Commission from the provisions of Chapter 108 in 
accordance with the requirements for variance relief in the bylaw. 

 

Commented [PC3]: Has this condition been discussed 

with the applicant during the course of the hearing? Ideally, 

there should be some basis for the condition in the record of 

proceedings. 

Commented [PC4]: As a general rule, a special permit 

cannot be conditioned/contingent upon a determination to be 

made by another board or Commission. Nor can the Planning 

Board impose conditions for Chapter 108 compliance since, 

per that Bylaw, he Board of Health and Sewer Commission, 

and their duly authorized agents,  have the power and 

authority to enforce the provisions of Chapter 108. I suggest 

that you may want to include the first sentence and delete the 

remainder of Condition d.  



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 7 

e. Restore 5.3 acres of cranberry bogs to natural wetlands systems identified in the site plans around the 
perennial stream called Quaker Run in accordance with subject to the issuance of an Order of 
Conditions from the Mashpee Conservation Commission. Until adequate performance surety is posted 
with the Mashpee Conservation Commission for the scope of the restoration, no building permits shall 
be issued  pursuant to this decisionfor this project.  
 

f. The applicant shall retain the services of Public Archaeology Laboratory (PAL) or similarly qualified firm 
to conduct a site assessment, sometimes referred to as a Phase 1 or Phase 1A investigation, of the 
project site at 275 Quinaquisset Avenue as well as any of the parcels identified for bog restoration on 
the submitted site plan with the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribal Historic Preservation Officer present 
during any site visits. The site assessment should take advantage of the most advanced archaeological 
technologies available to determine with accuracy the likelihood of any archaeological resources on 
the sites. Additionally, the scope of work shall include at a minimum:  
 

I. Pending response from David Weeden 
 
g. Local contractors and suppliers will be given first preference with regard to contracts for construction 

of the project. 
 
h. No lot shall be cleared until a building permit is issued for construction on said lot, except as necessary 

relative to removal of the existing structures on the property or for connection of the property to 
utilities or in connection with the project’s stormwater management facilities. 

 
i. Except as may be expressly where modified by the provisions of this decision, all previous special 

permit terms and conditions rapplicable to egarding the project shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
j. All conditions of this special permit and modification shall be binding not only upon the applicant but 

also on all successors-in-interest and assigns of the applicant. 
 

k. Any modifications to the site plans of this project resultingant from conditions imposed by the 
Conservation Commission, the Sewer Commission, or any other governmental agency with jurisdiction 
over the project shall be submitted to the Planning Board for its file through the Planning Department. 

 
l. This decision must be recorded within 60 days of their endorsement by the Board, with a notice 

provided to the Board of the Book and Page at which it each was recorded. 
 
6. Expiration, Extension or Modification. 
 
This Special Permit Modification shall lapse only as part of any lapse of the original Special Permit as previously 
modified.  It may be further modified under the terms of Section 174-24.C.(9) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw. 
 
7. Signature and Filing. 
 
This special permit modification document, which incorporates by reference herein all plans noted, has been 
approved on this ___ day of _____________ 2024.  A copy of same shall be filed with the Town Clerk in 
accordance with applicable law. 

Formatted: Highlight



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 8 

 
   
 Mashpee Planning Board - Duly Authorized Member 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
Barnstable, ss.   
 date 
 
On this ____ day of ________ 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared 
__________________________, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which were 
_____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the preceding or attached document, 
and acknowledged to me that (he/she) signed it voluntarily for its stated purpose. 
 
   
 Notary Public 
 
      My Commission expires:________________________ 
  date of expiration 
 
A copy of this decision and the accompanying plans approved by the Planning Board have been duly filed on 
_____________________, 2024 with the Town Clerk of Mashpee. 
 
   
 Town Clerk 
 
Notice of this decision was mailed on __________________________ to the applicant, to any parties in 
interest to whom such notice is required under Massachusetts General Law.  Any appeal should be made 
pursuant to Section 17 of Chapter 48 of the Massachusetts General Laws 20 days after the date of such filing. 
 
 
I, Deborah Kaye, Town Clerk of the Town of Mashpee, hereby certify that a copy of this decision and the 
accompanying plans approved by the Planning Board were filed with the office of the Town Clerk on 
______________________, 2024 and that no appeal of that decision was filed within 20 days thereafter. 
 
 
   
 Town Clerk 
 
 Date: _____________________________ 
 
Upon expiration of the statutory appeal period with no appeal having been filed, this special permit decision 
has been endorsed by the undersigned members of the Mashpee Planning Board on 
______________________, 2024 and may be recorded. 
 
 
   



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 9 

 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 1 

PLANNING BOARD DECISION 
WILLOWBEND SPECIAL PERMIT MODFICATION 

275 Quinaquisset Avenue – Cranberry Point 
 

1. Proposal. 
 
Reference is made to a Special Permit Decision issued by the Mashpee Planning Board, dated April 15, 1987 
and recorded with the Barnstable County District Registry of Deeds at Book 5707, Page 290, as amended from 
time to time (hereinafter the “Special Permit”).  By decision dated August 7, 1991, the Special Permit was 
transferred to Bent Twig Limited Partnership whose interest was subsequently assigned to Willowbend 
Development Corporation, and then to Willowbend Country Club, Inc. Most recently the Special Permit was 
transferred to Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC who is hereinafter referred to as the “applicant”.  The 
Special Permit authorizes construction of a residential / golf course community known as Willowbend south of 
Route 28 in east Mashpee (“the project”). 
 
The applicant proposes to modify the special permit and site plans to allow for the construction of 12 single-
family cottage-style condominiums on properties addressed as 275 Quinquissett Avenue and, Mashpee, MA 
02649 (Assessor’s Map 69 Block 169) totaling 220,650 square feet (+/-) or 5.065 acres. The units proposed 
represent a reduction of 2 units that were removed from the proposal to accommodate a more substantial 
naturally vegetated buffer between the limits of development and Quinaquissett Avenue consistent with most 
of the WIllowbend project. Additionally, the original submittal included a “village green” along the easterly 
portion of the property which was removed from consideration to minimize impacts to wetlands along that 
portion of the site. 
 
The subject property is not currently included within Willowbend’s special permit area and is improved with a 

single-family dwelling, sheds, a septic system, paved driveway, and lawn area. The existing dwelling is 
proposed for demolition. The existing development on these lots is concentrated around the 
dwelling, with extensive forested uplands to the west and forested uplands and wetlands to the east 
of the driveway/dwelling. Willowbend proposes to annex the subject parcel into the WIllowbend Special 
Permit area as allowed pursuant to 174-24(C)(9)(g) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaws which is intended to reduce 
the overall density of the project by not increasing the overall number of dwelling units authorized by the 
special permit nor decreasing the amount of protected open space. 
 
The subject property is bounded by Quinaquisset Avenue to the north and surrounded by cranberry bogs to 
the west and south constructed around the Quaker Run, a perennial stream, which flows south through the 
cranberry bogs and the golf course. The project will tie into existing utilities in Quinaquisset Avenue, including 
the Willowbend Wastewater Treatment Facility and no new septic systems are proposed. The project further 
incorporates a stormwater collection system that includes a new sediment forebay along Quinaquisset Avenue 
to offer pre-treatment to stormwater runoff currently entering the wetlands system without any pre-
treatment. 
 
The 12 units proposed would contribute to the overall dwelling unit maximum of 287 dwelling units defined in 
the Special Permit. Subsequent to the most recent modification of the Willowbend Special Permit pertaining to 
Willow Circle (See Barnstable Country Registry of Deeds Book 34860 Page 149) the total number of dwelling 
units in the project were found to be 274. The applicant provided documentation during the Planning Board’s 
review of this application that demonstrated that one property owner in Willowbend purchased two building 

kleslie
Typewritten Text
PB COMMENTSFROM 4/3/24DELIBERATIONS



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
16 Great Neck Road North 

Mashpee, MA 02649 

2 

lots to build one dwelling and, as such, the dwelling unit count stands at 273. Inclusion of these 12 units would 
increase the total number of dwelling units in the project area to 275. Willowbend’s special permit further 
specifies a maximum number of bedrooms allowed within the project area of 853. The Planning Board alleged, 
and the applicant acknowledged, that the number of bedrooms currently within the permit area exceeds 853.  

2. Jurisdiction.

The application was made and this decision has been issued by the Mashpee Planning Board pursuant to 
Section 174-24(C)(9) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw as it existed on XX/XX/XXXX the date on which this special 
permit modification was approved/denied by the Mashpee Planning Board.  As the proposal does not increase 
square footage of any use by more than 10%, the provisions of Section 174-24.C.(9)(d) of said bylaw provide 
that the land involved in this application is subject to the dimensional and other relevant provisions of the 
Zoning Bylaw as it existed on November 6, 1985, the date on which a preliminary subdivision plan was filed on 
the property, freezing the zoning in effect at the time that this special permit was originally issued on April 15, 
1987.  Expansion of the project area is permitted under Section 174-24.C.(9)(g) of the Zoning Bylaw if approved 
by the Planning Board.  With regard to the prohibition contained in Section 174-24.C.(9)(f) on increasing the 
number of units in a development, the proposed 285 units are less than the 338 originally authorized by the 
special permit and less than the 287 maximum currently defined in the 1991 special permit modification 
recorded in Book 8229 Page 264.  

The project is also subject to the applicable provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 40A, Section 9. 

3. Chronology.

Application for this Special Permit Modification and accompanying site development plans was filed with the 
Town Clerk and Planning Board on February 1, 2023.  A hearing was opened before the Mashpee Planning 
Board at the Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, Massachusetts on March 1, 2023 at 
7:10 p.m.  Notice was duly given to abutters in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A.  
Notice was also given by publication in the Mashpee Enterprise, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
Town of Mashpee, on February 10, 2023 and February 17, 2023.   

On March 20, 2024, the Planning Board voted to close the hearing. On April 3, 2024 the Planning Board 
commenced the deliberative process and made the following findings outlined below in Section 4: Findings. 
Upon a motion to grant the special permit modification subject to the conditions enumerated below made by 
____________ and seconded by __________ the members of the Board were recorded voting as follows: 
Members…. were recorded as voting in favor of approval of the proposed modification; members….. were 
recorded as voting against.  The motion to approve the special permit modification passed/failed. 

4. Findings.

a. The proposed modification involves less than 10% increase in the area of any use and is therefore,
under the provisions of Section 174-24.C.(9)(d) of the Zoning Bylaw, subject to the dimensional and
other relevant provisions of the Zoning Bylaw as it existed on November 6, 1985, the date on which a
preliminary subdivision plan was filed on the property, freezing the zoning in effect at the time that
this special permit was originally issued on April 15, 1987.  At that time, the property was in an R-3M

Confirm date 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
16 Great Neck Road North 

Mashpee, MA 02649 

3 

zoning district.  This subdivision is proposed under the cluster subdivision zoning regulations applicable 
to the project on that date. 

b. The proposed modification lies outside of the “Original Project” area but within the project area as
expanded by vote of the Planning Board in Willowbend Special Permit Modification #27 pursuant to
Section 174-24.C.(9)(g) of the Zoning Bylaw increasing said area to 330.14 acres in Mashpee and 3.39
acres in Barnstable.

c. Under the provisions of Sections 9.3 and 9.4 of the applicable 1985 Zoning By-law, a minimum of 92.0
acres of open space was required within the “original project area”.  Current open space is 237.9 acres,
well in excess of the required acreage.

d. Under the 1985 special permit, the project would have been allowed 341 residential units and was
permitted for 338 units. In 1991, the Permit was modified to reduce the total number of units to 287.
The current proposal increases the number of approved units to 285 out of 287 maximum allowed
units, which the Board finds to be permissible under Section 174-24.C.(9)(f), as it is less than the
originally allowed 338 units and less than the currently allowed 287, and hereby approves said
increase.

e. Under the 1985 special permit, which was affirmed in a 1991 special permit modification, the project is
allowed no more than 853 bedrooms within the project area. The Planning Board finds, and the
applicant acknowledged that there are currently more than 853 bedrooms in the project area and
were at least 855 on August 2, 2023 as calculated by the Town Planner utilizing Assessor’s data and
Building Department records. The Planning Board finds that the applicant is not in compliance with this
condition of the special permit and has established a new series of conditions to mitigate the impacts
of the additional bedrooms in existence and planned, including this application. Those conditions are
outlined below in Section 5: Conditions.

f. The project satisfies the requirements of Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40A, in that it complies
with the general purposes and intent of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw on the applicable dates.  

g. The original special permit (1987) is conditioned on maintaining a minimum 100 foot buffer strip from
either edge of Sampson's Mill Road and Quinaquisset Avenue left in its existing vegetative state,
except for entrance areas, golf cart underpass and golf course areas shown on the filed plans. The
submitted site plans for Cranberry Point indicate a buffer strip totaling 65 feet between the first
condominium and the edge of Quinaquisset Avenue which is less than the 100 feet required. The
Board finds that section 9.352 of the Zoning Bylaws in place at the time of the original special permit
approval stated:

“A buffer strip of land equal in width to the front yard requirement of the underlying zoning 
district shall be created along the entire perimeter of the parcel. The perimeter shall be 
unbroken except for access roads. The buffer strip shall be considered part of the open space. 
The buffer strip shall be maintained in its natural state or landscaped if in the opinion of the 
Planning Board it is necessary to protect privacy of adjoining land owners and shall not be 
used for parking or organized recreational activities. The Planning Board may require a buffer 
strip in excess of the minimum requirement depending on the use of adjoining land.”  

1987

totals 

HOLD

Keep as? No: 0-5-0 to
protect flow neutral 

Confirm this language: 

HOLD
Need to
confirm



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 4 

 
The Planning Board finds that a reduced 65 foot buffer strip is greater than 40 feet, which was the 
minimum width of the front yard requirement applicable under the 1985 bylaw, which would 
adequately protect the privacy of adjoining land owners and is not being used for parking or organized 
recreational activities. The Board finds that the 65 foot buffer strip shown on the site development 
plans does not derogate from the purpose and intent of the bylaw or special permit and exceeds the 
minimum requirements of the applicable zoning criteria and hereby authorizes a 65 foot buffer 
between the edge of Quinaquisset Avenue and the limits of development on the subject parcel.  

 
h. The Board finds that Mashpee General Bylaws Chapter 108: Flow Neutral applies to the subject 

property which limits present and future wastewater flows to the flows permitted from the property 
as of the effective date of the Mashpee Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP), July 
1, 2015. Chapter 108 establishes a 1 bedroom per 10,000 square feet of lot area limit for multifamily 
projects such as Cranberry Point. The subject parcel totals 220,650 square feet. As such, under the 
provisions of Chapter 108, the subject property is limited to 22 bedrooms without relief. 

 
i. The Board finds that the subject parcel and surrounding bog system contemplated in the applicant’s 

mitigation package are within or adjacent to areas mapped as moderate pre-contact archaeological 
sensitivity areas determined from a Town-wide pre-contact sensitivity survey conducted by the Public 
Archaeological Laboratory (PAL) from Pawtucket, RI. The Board accepted comment from the Mashpee 
Wampanoag Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) who expressed concern over any and all 
ground disturbing activities on the subject parcel and surrounding bog parcels under consideration for 
restoration due to the cultural and archaeological sensitivity of the area and the potential to discover 
culturally sensitive artifacts and materials. 

 
j. The Board finds that the proposed stormwater sediment forebay proposed within the 65 foot buffer 

strip along Quinaquisset Avenue will capture and pre-treat stormwater before it enters the wetlands 
systems in and around the subject parcel.  

 
k. The submitted site plans were reviewed by the Planning Board’s consulting engineer Ed Pesce, who 

provided written responses to the Planning Board dated February 27, 2023, October 13, 2023, and 
December 6, 2023. The Board finds that the applicant was responsive to the engineer’s comments and 
made satisfactory revisions to the submitted plans.  The Board accepts the recommendation of the 
consulting engineer to recommend approval.  In his December 6, 2023 letter transmitted as an email 
to Evan Lehrer, Community Development Director, the consulting engineer wrote: 

 
“The revised plans and associated documentation have addressed the majority of my previous 
engineering review comments. There are a few comments that still need to be resolved. 
However, these comments are relatively minor, and I believe can be resolved with direct 
coordination between myself and Matt Eddy of Baxter Nye. Subject to the discretion of the 
Board, I would recommend approval of these plans, with the condition that all the Pesce 
Engineering comments are satisfactorily addressed.” 

 
l. Due to changes made to the development plans to remove, to the maximum extent practicable, 

impacts to bordering vegetated wetland onsite updates to the drainage and grading plans need to be 
made to the satisfaction of the consulting engineer.  

Strike 4-1-0

Keep as is 4-1-0

Keep as is 5-0-0

Keep as is 5-0-0

Keep as is 5-0-0 provided there is condition that final plans
are approved by Board Engineer. 

Keep as is 5-0-0 provided there is condition that final plans
are approved by Board Engineer. 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 5 

 
m. The project on the subject parcel as well as the bog restoration contemplated in the plans fall within 

the jurisdiction of the Mashpee Conservation Commission and require the issuance of an order of 
conditions.  

 
n. The Board finds that the subject parcel is within the jurisdictional buffer of the Mashpee Conservation 

Commission. The 12 condominiums proposed on the subject parcel and the bog restoration 
contemplated in the plans require review and approval by the Conservation Commission. Additionally, 
the Board finds that, due to the subject parcel’s existence within the jurisdictional buffer of the 
Mashpee Conservation Commission the project is exempt from the requirements of the Chapter 175 
Mashpee Tree Preservation General Bylaw. 

 
o. In conformance with the provisions of Article VI, Section 174-24.C.(2) of the Zoning Bylaw, the Planning 

Board finds that the proposal will not adversely affect public health or safety, will not cause excessive 
demand on community facilities, will not significantly decrease surface or ground water quality or air 
quality, will not have significant adverse impact on wildlife habitat, estuarine systems, traffic flow, 
traffic safety, waterways, fisheries, public lands or neighboring properties, will not cause excessive 
levels of noise, vibration, electrical disturbance, radioactivity or glare, will not destroy or disrupt any 
species listed as rare, endangered or threatened by the Massachusetts Natural Heritage program or 
any known historic or archaeologic site, will not produce amounts of trash, refuse or debris in excess of 
the Town’s landfill and waste disposal capacities, will properly dispose of stumps, construction debris, 
hazardous materials and other wastes, will provide adequate off street parking, will not cause 
excessive erosion or cause increase runoff into neighboring properties or into any natural river, 
stream, pond or water body and will not otherwise be detrimental to the Town or the area. 

 
5. Conditions. 
 

a. The project shall be constructed in conformance with the following site plans: 
 

“Cranberry Point at Willowbend - Site Construction Plans, Mashpee, Massachusetts,” 
Prepared for Southworth Mashpee Properties, LLC, 130 Willowbend Drive, Mashpee, MA 
02649; Project Titled: Cranberry Point – 275 Quinaquisset Avenue, Mashpee, MA 02649; 
Prepared by Baxter Nye Engineering & Surveying, Hyannis, MA 02601, dated January 16, 2023 
consisting of 19 sheets as follows: 

 
C0.0  Cover Sheet  
C1.0  Legend and General Notes 
CPP1.0  Certified Plot Plan 
C2.0  Existing Conditions  Plan 
C3.0  Master Layout Plan 
C3.1  Site Layout Plan – Sheet 1 of 2 
C3.2  Site Layout Plan – Sheet 2 of 2 
C3.3  Sight Distance Plan 
C-3.4  Truck Turning Template Plan 
C-4.0  Grading & Drainage Plan Sheet 1 of 2   
C-4.1  Grading & Drainage Plan Sheet 2 of 2   

Keep as is 5-0-0

Keep as is 5-0-0

1-4-0 on this finding

1-4-0 on this finding 

 4-1-0 on this finding  



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 6 

 
C4.2  Grading Inset & Drainage Details 
C4.3 Drainage Notes 
C5.0 Utility Plan – Sheet 1 of 2 
C5.1 Utility Plan – Sheet 2 of 2 
C5.2 Proposed Driveway and Utility Profiles 
C6.0 Master Mitigation Plan 
C7.0 Details Plan 
C7.1 Details Plan 

 
b. The applicant shall submit updated and final grading and drainage plans to the Planning Board for its 

file to the satisfaction of the Planning Board’s consulting engineer. 
 
c. To mitigate the impacts of the bedrooms that exist and that are proposed in the project that exceed 

853, the applicant shall: 
 

I.  Make a $100,000 cash contribution to the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust to be made 
upon issuance of the building permit for the first unit at Cranberry Point.  

II. Donate parcels 21, 22, and 23 shown on Mashpee Assessor’s Map 77, totaling just over one-
half an acre to the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust. 
 

d. The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with the requirements of Chapter 108 Flow Neutral Bylaw 
to the satisfaction of the Sewer Commission or other relevant authority. Given the parcels size, 22 
bedrooms are allowed on the parcel by right, but 48 bedrooms are proposed. Willowbend shall 
demonstrate compliance with the requirements of Chapter 108 to the satisfaction of the Sewer 
Commission by demonstrating one or more of the following: 

 
I. The total land area held in common throughout WIllowbend (that has not been conveyed to 

private property owners) area results in less than 1 bedroom per 10,000 square feet based on 
all available estimates of existing and planned bedrooms.  

II. Can restrict land area under the control of Willowbend for purposes of nitrogen aggregation if 
and when those regulations are promulgated by the Sewer Commission. Any land area 
restricted for this purpose should be in the same watershed. 

III. Obtain a variance from the Sewer Commission from the provisions of Chapter 108 in 
accordance with the requirements for variance relief in the bylaw. 

 
e. Restore 5.3 acres of cranberry bogs to natural wetlands systems identified in the site plans around the 

perennial stream called Quaker Run subject to the issuance of an Order of Conditions from the 
Mashpee Conservation Commission. Until adequate performance surety is posted with the Mashpee 
Conservation Commission for the scope of the restoration, no building permits shall be issued for this 
project.  
 

f. The applicant shall retain the services of Public Archaeology Laboratory (PAL) or similarly qualified firm 
to conduct a site assessment, sometimes referred to as a Phase 1 or Phase 1A investigation, of the 
project site at 275 Quinaquisset Avenue as well as any of the parcels identified for bog restoration on 
the submitted site plan with the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribal Historic Preservation Officer present 

, final utilites,

Strike 5-0-0

including but not limited to plan pages C4.0 through 
C4.3 and C5.0 through C5.2.  

Stike 5-0-0 

Prior to the issuance of any building permit, or the commencement of any site work in the cranberry bogs cited in the paragraph e. above, 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 7 

during any site visits. The site assessment should take advantage of the most advanced archaeological 
technologies available to determine with accuracy the likelihood of any archaeological resources on 
the sites. Additionally, the scope of work shall include at a minimum:  
 

I. Pending response from David Weeden 
 
g. Local contractors and suppliers will be given first preference with regard to contracts for construction 

of the project. 
 
h. No lot shall be cleared until a building permit is issued for construction on said lot, except as necessary 

relative to removal of the existing structures on the property or for connection of the property to 
utilities or in connection with the project’s stormwater management facilities. 

 
i. Except where modified by the provisions of this decision, all previous special permit conditions 

regarding the project shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
j. All conditions of this special permit and modification shall be binding not only upon the applicant but 

also on all successors-in-interest and assigns of the applicant. 
 

k. Any modifications to the site plans of this project resultant from conditions imposed by the 
Conservation Commission, the Sewer Commission, or any governmental agency with jurisdiction over 
the project shall be submitted to the Planning Board for its file through the Planning Department. 

 
l. This decision must be recorded within 60 days of their endorsement by the Board, with a notice 

provided to the Board of the Book and Page at which each was recorded. 
 
6. Expiration, Extension or Modification. 
 
This Special Permit Modification shall lapse only as part of any lapse of the original Special Permit as previously 
modified.  It may be further modified under the terms of Section 174-24.C.(9) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw. 
 
7. Signature and Filing. 
 
This special permit modification document, which incorporates by reference herein all plans noted, has been 
approved on this ___ day of _____________ 2024.  A copy of same shall be filed with the Town Clerk in 
accordance with applicable law. 
 
   
 Mashpee Planning Board - Duly Authorized Member 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
Barnstable, ss.   
 date 
 
On this ____ day of ________ 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared 
__________________________, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which were 

 for the PAL investigation

The hours of site work and construction shall be limited to 7 AM to 5 PM Monday through Friday and 8 AM to 3 PM 

officer of the Federally Recognized Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe prior to the commencement of the PAL investigation.
shall be approved by the Tribal Histroic Preservation

on Saturday.  No site work or construction shall be allowed to occur at the project site on Sunday or Holidays unless urgent in nature 
as determined and approved by the Building Commissioner. 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 8 

_____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the preceding or attached document, 
and acknowledged to me that (he/she) signed it voluntarily for its stated purpose. 
 
   
 Notary Public 
 
      My Commission expires:________________________ 
  date of expiration 
 
A copy of this decision and the accompanying plans approved by the Planning Board have been duly filed on 
_____________________, 2024 with the Town Clerk of Mashpee. 
 
   
 Town Clerk 
 
Notice of this decision was mailed on __________________________ to the applicant, to any parties in 
interest to whom such notice is required under Massachusetts General Law.  Any appeal should be made 
pursuant to Section 17 of Chapter 48 of the Massachusetts General Laws 20 days after the date of such filing. 
 
 
I, Deborah Kaye, Town Clerk of the Town of Mashpee, hereby certify that a copy of this decision and the 
accompanying plans approved by the Planning Board were filed with the office of the Town Clerk on 
______________________, 2024 and that no appeal of that decision was filed within 20 days thereafter. 
 
 
   
 Town Clerk 
 
 Date: _____________________________ 
 
Upon expiration of the statutory appeal period with no appeal having been filed, this special permit decision 
has been endorsed by the undersigned members of the Mashpee Planning Board on 
______________________, 2024 and may be recorded. 
 
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 1 

PLANNING BOARD DECISION 
WILLOWBEND SPECIAL PERMIT MODFICATION 

275 Quinaquisset Avenue – Cranberry Point 
 

1. Proposal. 
 
Reference is made to a Special Permit Decision issued by the Mashpee Planning Board, dated April 15, 1987 
and recorded with the Barnstable County District Registry of Deeds at Book 5707, Page 290, as amended from 
time to time (hereinafter the “Special Permit”).  By decision dated August 7, 1991, the Special Permit was 
transferred to Bent Twig Limited Partnership whose interest was subsequently assigned to Willowbend 
Development Corporation, and then to Willowbend Country Club, Inc. Most recently the Special Permit was 
transferred to Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC who is hereinafter referred to as the “applicantApplicant”.  
The Special Permit authorizes construction of a residential / golf course community known as Willowbend 
south of Route 28 in east Mashpee (“the project”). 
 
The applicantApplicant proposes to modify the special permit and site plans to allow for the construction of 12 
single-family cottage-style condominiums on properties addressed as 275 Quinquissett Avenue and, Mashpee, 
MA 02649 (Assessor’s Map 69 Block 169) totaling 220,650 square feet (+/-) or 5.065 acres. The units proposed 
represent a reduction of 2 units that were removed from the proposal to accommodate a more substantial 
naturally vegetated buffer between the limits of development and Quinaquissett Avenue consistent with most 
of the WIllowbend project. Additionally, the original submittal included a “village green” along the easterly 
portion of the property which was removed from consideration to minimize impacts to wetlands along that 
portion of the site. 
 
The subject property is not currently included within Willowbend’s special permit area and is improved with a 

single-family dwelling, sheds, a septic system, paved driveway, and lawn area. The existing dwelling is 
proposed for demolition. The existing development on these lots is concentrated around the 
dwelling, with extensive forested uplands to the west and forested uplands and wetlands to the east 
of the driveway/dwelling. Willowbend The Applicant proposes to annex the subject parcel into the 
WIllowbend Special Permit area as allowed pursuant to 174-24(C)(9)(g) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaws which is 
intended to reduce the overall density of the project by not increasing the overall number of dwelling units 
authorized by the special permit nor decreasing the amount of protected open space. 
 
The subject property is bounded by Quinaquisset Avenue to the north and surrounded by cranberry bogs to 
the west and south constructed around the Quaker Run, a perennial stream, which flows south through the 
cranberry bogs and the golf course. The project will tie into existing utilities in Quinaquisset Avenue, including 
the Willowbend Wastewater Treatment Facility and no new septic systems are proposed. The project further 
incorporates a stormwater collection system that includes a new sediment forebay along Quinaquisset Avenue 
to offer pre-treatment to stormwater runoff currently entering the wetlands system without any pre-
treatment. 
 
The 12 units proposed would contribute to the overall dwelling unit maximum of 287 dwelling units defined in 
the Special Permit. Subsequent to the most recent modification of the Willowbend Special Permit pertaining to 
Willow Circle (See Barnstable Country Registry of Deeds Book 34860 Page 149) the total number of dwelling 
units in the project were found to be 274. The applicantApplicant provided documentation during the Planning 
Board’s review of this application that demonstrated that one property owner in Willowbend purchased two 

kleslie
Typewritten Text
COMBINED TOWNCOUNSEL & PBCOMMENTS

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 2 

building lots to build one dwelling and, as such, the dwelling unit count stands at 273. Inclusion of these 12 
units would increase the total number of dwelling units in the project area to 275. Willowbend’s special permit 
further specifies a maximum number of bedrooms allowed within the project area of 853. The Planning Board 
allegedcontends, and the applicant Applicant has acknowledged, that the number of bedrooms currently 
within the permit area exceeds the 853 limit.  
 
2. Jurisdiction. 
 
The application was made and this decision has been issued by the Mashpee Planning Board pursuant to 
Section 174-24(C)(9) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw as it existed on XX/XX/XXXX the date on which this special 
permit modification was approved/denied by the Mashpee Planning Board.  As the proposal does not increase 
square footage of any use by more than 10%, the provisions of Section 174-24.C.(9)(d) of said bylaw provide 
that the land involved in this application is subject to the dimensional and other relevant provisions of the 
Zoning Bylaw as it existed on November 6, 1985, the date on which a preliminary subdivision plan was filed on 
the property, freezing the zoning in effect at the time that this special permit was originally issued on April 15, 
1987.  Expansion of the project area is permitted under Section 174-24.C.(9)(g) of the Zoning Bylaw if approved 
by the Planning Board.  With regard to the prohibition contained in Section 174-24.C.(9)(f) on increasing the 
number of units in a development, the proposed 285 units are less than the 338 originally authorized by the 
special permit and less than the 287 maximum currently defined established in the 1991 special permit 
modification recorded in Book 8229 Page 264.  
 
The project isapplication and this decision are also subject to the applicable provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 40A, 
Section 9. 
 
3. Chronology.   
 
Application for this Special Permit Modification and accompanying site development plans was were filed with 
the Town Clerk and Planning Board on February 1, 2023.  A hearing was opened before the Mashpee Planning 
Board at the Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, Massachusetts on March 1, 2023 at 
7:10 p.m.  Notice was duly given to abutters in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A.  
Notice was also given by publication in the Mashpee Enterprise, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
Town of Mashpee, on February 10, 2023 and February 17, 2023.   
 
On March 20, 2024, the Planning Board voted to close the hearing. On April 3, 2024 the Planning Board 
commenced the deliberative processits deliberations and made the following findings outlined below in 
Section 4: , Findings, below. Upon a motion to grant the special permit modification subject to the conditions 
enumerated below made by ____________ and seconded by __________ the members of the Board were 
recorded voting as follows: Members…. were recorded as voting in favor of approval of the proposed 
modification; membersMembers….. were recorded as voting against approval of the proposed modification.  
The motion to approve the special permit modification passed/failed. 
 
4. Findings. 
 

a. The proposed modification involves less than 10% increase in the area of any use and is therefore, 
under the provisions of Section 174-24.C.(9)(d) of the Zoning Bylaw, subject to the dimensional and 
other relevant provisions of the Zoning Bylaw as it existed on November 6, 1985, the date on which a Commented [KL1]: Mary:  Confirm date 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 3 

preliminary subdivision plan was filed on the property, freezing the zoning in effect at the time that 
this special permit was originally issued on April 15, 1987.  At that time, the property was in an R-3M 
zoning district.  This subdivision is proposed under the cluster subdivision zoning regulations applicable 
to the project on that date. 

 
b. The proposed modification lies outside of the “Original Project” area but within the project area as 

expanded by vote of the Planning Board in Willowbend Special Permit Modification #27 pursuant to 
Section 174-24.C.(9)(g) of the Zoning Bylaw increasing said area to 330.14 acres in Mashpee and 3.39 
acres in Barnstable.   

 
c.b. Under the provisions of Sections 9.3 and 9.4 of the applicable 1985 Zoning By-law, a minimum of 92.0 

acres of open space was required within the “original project area”.  Current open space is 237.9 acres, 
well in excess of the required acreage. 

 
d.c. Under the 1985 1987 special permit, the project would have been allowed 341 residential units and 

was permitted for 338 units. In 1991, the Permit was modified to reduce the total number of units to 
287. The current proposal increases totals the number of approved units to 285 out of 287 maximum 
allowed units., which tThe Board finds this increase to be permissible under Section 174-24.C.(9)(f), as 
it is less than the originally allowed 338 units and less than the currently allowed 287, and it hereby 
approves said increase. 

 
e.d. Under the 1985 1987 special permit, which was affirmed in a 1991 special permit modification, the 

project is allowed no more than 853 bedrooms within the project area. The Planning Board finds, and 
the applicant Applicant has acknowledged, that there are currently more than 853 bedrooms in the 
project area and that there were at least 855 existing bedrooms on August 2, 2023, as calculated by 
the Town Planner utilizing Assessor’s data and Building Department records. The Planning Board finds 
that the applicant Applicant is not in compliance with this bedroom limit condition of the special 
permit and it has established a new series offurther conditions to mitigate the impacts of the 
additional excess bedrooms in existence and planned, including those proposed by this application. 
Those conditions are outlined below in Section 5: Conditions, below. 

 
f.e. The project satisfies the requirements of Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40A, in that it complies 

with the general purposes and intent of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw on the applicable dates.   
 
g.f. The original special permit (1987) is conditioned on maintaining a minimum 100 foot buffer strip from 

either edge of Sampson's Mill Road and Quinaquisset Avenue left in its existing vegetative state, 
except for entrance areas, golf cart underpass and golf course areas shown on the filed plans. The 
submitted site plans for Cranberry Point indicate a buffer strip totaling 65 feet between the first 
condominium and the edge of Quinaquisset Avenue which is less than the 100 feet required. The 
Board finds that section 9.352 of the Zoning Bylaws in place at the time of the original special permit 
approval stated: 

 
“A buffer strip of land equal in width to the front yard requirement of the underlying zoning 
district shall be created along the entire perimeter of the parcel. The perimeter shall be 
unbroken except for access roads. The buffer strip shall be considered part of the open space. 
The buffer strip shall be maintained in its natural state or landscaped if in the opinion of the 

Commented [KL2]: Mary 

Commented [KL3]: Mary 

Commented [KL4]: Mary:  Need to confirm 

Commented [KL5]: Mary 

Commented [KL6]: Mary:  Hold 

Commented [KL7]: Mary 

Commented [KL8]: If we changed it above, it should be 

changed here as well 

Commented [KL9]: Mary: delete 

Commented [KL10]: Mary:  Keep as? 0-5-0 to protect 

flow neutral 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 4 

Planning Board it is necessary to protect privacy of adjoining land owners and shall not be 
used for parking or organized recreational activities. The Planning Board may require a buffer 
strip in excess of the minimum requirement depending on the use of adjoining land.”  

 
The Planning Board finds that a reduced 65 65-foot buffer strip is greater than 40 feet, which was the 
minimum width of the front yard requirement applicable under the 1985 bylaw, which would 
adequately protect the privacy of adjoining land owners and is not being used for parking or organized 
recreational activities. The Board finds that the 65 65-foot buffer strip shown on the site development 
plans does not derogate from the purpose and intent of the bylaw or the special permit and exceeds 
the minimum requirements of the applicable zoning criteria.  Accordingly, the Board and hereby 
authorizes a 65 65-foot buffer between the edge of Quinaquisset Avenue and the limits of 
development on the subject parcel.  

 
h.g. The Board finds that Mashpee General Bylaws Chapter 108,: Flow Neutral, which limits present and 

future wastewater flows to the flows permitted from the property as of the effective date of the 
Mashpee Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP), July 1, 2015, applies to the subject 
property which limits present and future wastewater flows to the flows permitted from the property 
as of the effective date of the Mashpee Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP), July 
1, 2015. Chapter 108 establishes a 1 bedroom per 10,000 square feet of lot area limit for multifamily 
projects such as Cranberry Point. The subject parcel totals 220,650 square feet. As such, under the 
provisions of Chapter 108, the subject property is presumed to be limited to 22 bedrooms without 
relief from the Board of Health or Sewer Commission. 

 
i.h. The Board finds that the subject parcel and surrounding bog system contemplated in the 

applicantApplicant’s mitigation package are within or adjacent to areas mapped as moderate pre-
contact archaeological sensitivity areas determined from a Town-wide pre-contact sensitivity survey 
conducted by the Public Archaeological Laboratory (PAL) from Pawtucket, RI. The Board accepted 
comment from the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) who expressed 
concern over any and all ground disturbing activities on the subject parcel and surrounding bog parcels 
under consideration for restoration due to the cultural and archaeological sensitivity of the area and 
the potential to discoverpresence of culturally sensitive artifacts and materials therein. 

 
j.i. The Board finds that the proposed stormwater sediment forebay proposed within the 65 foot buffer 

strip along Quinaquisset Avenue will capture and pre-treat stormwater before it enters the wetlands 
systems in and around the subject parcel.  

 
k.j. The submitted site plans were reviewed by the Planning Board’s consulting engineer Ed Pesce, who 

provided written responses to the Planning Board dated February 27, 2023, October 13, 2023, and 
December 6, 2023. The Board finds that the applicantApplicant was responsive to the engineer’s 
comments and made satisfactory revisions to the submitted plans.  The Board accepts the 
recommendation of the consulting engineer’s to recommendation that said plans be 
approvalapproved.  In his December 6, 2023 letter correspondence transmitted as an email to Evan 
Lehrer, Community Development Director, the consulting engineer wrote: 

 
“The revised plans and associated documentation have addressed the majority of my previous 
engineering review comments. There are a few comments that still need to be resolved. 

Commented [KL11]: Mary:  Confirm this language 

Keep as is 4-1-0 

Commented [KL12]: Mary: delete 

Strike 4-1-0 

Commented [KL13]: Mary:  Keep as is 5-0-0 

Commented [KL14]: Mary:  Keep as is 5-0-0 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 5 

However, these comments are relatively minor, and I believe can be resolved with direct 
coordination between myself and Matt Eddy of Baxter Nye. Subject to the discretion of the 
Board, I would recommend approval of these plans, with the condition that all the Pesce 
Engineering comments are satisfactorily addressed.” 

 
l.k. Due to changes made to the development plans to remove, to the maximum extent practicable, 

impacts to bordering vegetated wetland onsite updates to the drainage and grading plans need to be 
made to the satisfaction of the consulting engineer.  

 
m.l. The project on the subject parcel as well as the bog restoration contemplated in the plans fall within 

the jurisdiction of the Mashpee Conservation Commission and require the issuance of an order of 
conditions.  

 
n.m. The Board finds that the subject parcel is within the jurisdictional buffer of the Mashpee 

Conservation Commission. The 12 condominiums proposed on the subject parcel and the bog 
restoration contemplated in the plans require review and approval by the Conservation Commission. 
Additionally, the Board finds that, due to the subject parcel’s existence within the jurisdictional buffer 
of the Mashpee Conservation Commission the project is exempt from the requirements of the Chapter 
175 Mashpee Tree Preservation General Bylaw. 

 
o.n. In conformance with the provisions of Article VI, Section 174-24.C.(2) of the Zoning Bylaw, the Planning 

Board finds that the proposal, as conditioned hereby, will not adversely affect public health or safety, 
will not cause excessive demand on community facilities, will not significantly decrease surface or 
ground water quality or air quality, will not have significant adverse impact on wildlife habitat, 
estuarine systems, traffic flow, traffic safety, waterways, fisheries, public lands or neighboring 
properties, will not cause excessive levels of noise, vibration, electrical disturbance, radioactivity or 
glare, will not destroy or disrupt any species listed as rare, endangered or threatened by the 
Massachusetts Natural Heritage program or any known historic or archaeologic site, will not produce 
amounts of trash, refuse or debris in excess of the Town’s landfill and waste disposal capacities, will 
properly dispose of stumps, construction debris, hazardous materials and other wastes, will provide 
adequate off street parking, will not cause excessive erosion or cause increase runoff into neighboring 
properties or into any natural river, stream, pond or water body and will not otherwise be detrimental 
to the Town or the area. 

 
5. Conditions. 
 

a. The project shall be constructed in conformance with the following site plans: 
 

“Cranberry Point at Willowbend - Site Construction Plans, Mashpee, Massachusetts,” 
Prepared for Southworth Mashpee Properties, LLC, 130 Willowbend Drive, Mashpee, MA 
02649; Project Titled: Cranberry Point – 275 Quinaquisset Avenue, Mashpee, MA 02649; 
Prepared by Baxter Nye Engineering & Surveying, Hyannis, MA 02601, dated January 16, 2023 
consisting of 19 sheets as follows: 

 
C0.0  Cover Sheet  
C1.0  Legend and General Notes 

Commented [KL15]: Mary:  Keep as is 5-0-0 provided 

there is condition that final plans are approved by Board 

Engineer. 

Commented [KL16]: Town Counsel:  Evan, this language 

is somewhat confusing.  Not clear what further plan changes 

are to be required. 

Commented [KL17]: Mary:  Keep as is 5-0-0 provided 

there is condition that final plans are approved by Board 

Engineer. 

Commented [KL18]: Mary:  Keep as is 5-0-0 

Commented [KL19]: Mary:  Keep as is 5-0-0 

Commented [KL20]: Mary: 1-4-0 on this finding 

Commented [KL21]: Mary: 1-4-0 on this finding 

Commented [KL22]: 4-1-0 on this finding 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 6 

CPP1.0  Certified Plot Plan 
C2.0  Existing Conditions  Plan 
C3.0  Master Layout Plan 
C3.1  Site Layout Plan – Sheet 1 of 2 
C3.2  Site Layout Plan – Sheet 2 of 2 
C3.3  Sight Distance Plan 
C-3.4  Truck Turning Template Plan 
C-4.0  Grading & Drainage Plan Sheet 1 of 2   
C-4.1  Grading & Drainage Plan Sheet 2 of 2   
 
C4.2  Grading Inset & Drainage Details 
C4.3 Drainage Notes 
C5.0 Utility Plan – Sheet 1 of 2 
C5.1 Utility Plan – Sheet 2 of 2 
C5.2 Proposed Driveway and Utility Profiles 
C6.0 Master Mitigation Plan 
C7.0 Details Plan 
C7.1 Details Plan 

 
b. The applicantApplicant shall submit updated and final grading, final utilities, and drainage plans to the 

Planning Board for its file to the satisfaction of the Planning Board’s consulting engineer including but 
not limited to plan pages C4.0 through C4.3 and C5.0 through C5.2. 

 
c. To mitigate the impacts of the existing and proposed bedrooms that exist and that are proposed in the 

project that exceed the 853 bedroom special permit limit, the applicant Applicant shall: 
 

I.  Make a $100,000 cash contribution to the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust, payable to be 
made upon issuance of the building permit for the first unit at Cranberry Point.  

II. Donate parcels 21, 22, and 23 shown on Mashpee Assessor’s Map 77, totaling just over one-
half an acre to the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust. 
 

d. The applicantApplicant shall demonstrate compliancecomply with the requirements of the Chapter 
108 Flow Neutral Bylaw to the satisfaction of the Sewer Commission or other relevant jurisdictional 
authority. Given the parcels size, 22 bedrooms are allowed on the parcel by right, but 48 bedrooms are 
proposed. Willowbend shall demonstrate compliance with the requirements of Chapter 108 to the 
satisfaction of the Sewer Commission by demonstrating one or more of the following: 

  
I. The total land area held in common throughout WIllowbend (that has not been conveyed to private 

property owners) area results in less than 1 bedroom per 10,000 square feet based on all available 
estimates of existing and planned bedrooms.  

II. Can restrict land area under the control of Willowbend for purposes of nitrogen aggregation if and 
when those regulations are promulgated by the Sewer Commission. Any land area restricted for this 
purpose should be in the same watershed. 

III. Obtain a variance from the Sewer Commission from the provisions of Chapter 108 in accordance with 
the requirements for variance relief in the bylaw. 

 

Commented [KL23]: Mary 

Commented [KL24]: Mary 

Commented [KL25]: Town Counsel:  Has this condition 

been discussed with the applicant during the course of the 

hearing?  Ideally, there should be some basis for the 

condition in the record of proceedings. 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a,

b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

0.25" + Indent at:  0.5", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab

Commented [KL26]: Town Counsel:  As a general rule, a 

special permit cannot be conditioned/contingent upon a 

determination to be made by another Board or Commission.  

Nor can the Planning Board impose conditions for Chapter 

108 compliance since, per that Bylaw, the Board of Health 

and Sewer Commission, and their duly authorized agents 

have the power and authority to enforce the provisions of 

Chapter 108.  I suggest that you may want to include the first 

sentence and delete the remainder of Condition d. 

Commented [KL27]: Mary:  Strike 5-0-0 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 7 

e.d. Restore 5.3 acres of cranberry bogs to natural wetlands systems identified in the site plans around the 
perennial stream called Quaker Run subject to the issuance ofin accordance with an Order of 
Conditions from the Mashpee Conservation Commission. Until adequate performance surety is posted 
with the Mashpee Conservation Commission for the scope of the restoration, no building permits shall 
be issued for this projectpursuant to this decision.  
 

f.e. Prior to the issuance of any building permit, or the commencement of any site work in the cranberry 
bogs cited in Paragraph e (this reference may change once things are striken-check) above, tThe 
applicantApplicant shall retain the services of Public Archaeology Laboratory (PAL) or similarly qualified 
firm to conduct a site assessment, sometimes referred to as a Phase 1 or Phase 1A investigation, of the 
project site at 275 Quinaquisset Avenue as well as any of the parcels identified for bog restoration on 
the submitted site plan with the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribal Historic Preservation Officer present 
during any site visits. The site assessment should take advantage of the most advanced archaeological 
technologies available to determine with accuracy the likelihood of any archaeological resources on 
the sites. Additionally, the scope of work for the PAL investigation shall include at a minimumbe 
approved by the Tribal Historic Preservation officer of the federally recognized Mashpee Wampanoag 
Tribe prior to the commencement of the PAL investigation.:  
 

g.f. Local contractors and suppliers will be given first preference with regard to contracts for construction 
of the project.  The hours of site work and construction shall be limited to 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday 
through Friday and 8 a.m. to 3 p.m. on Saturday.  No site work or construction shall be allowed to 
occur at the project site on Sunday or holidays unless urgent in nature as determined and approved by 
the Building Commissioner. 

 
h.g. No lot shall be cleared until a building permit is issued for construction on said lot, except as necessary 

relative to removal of the existing structures on the property or for connection of the property to 
utilities or in connection with the project’s stormwater management facilities. 

 
i.h. Except as may be expressly where modified by the provisions of this decision, all previous special 

permit terms and conditions regarding applicable to the project shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
j.i. All conditions of this special permit and modification shall be binding not only upon the 

applicantApplicant but also on all successors-in-interest and assigns of the applicantApplicant. 
 

k.j. Any modifications to the site plans of this project resultant resulting from conditions imposed by the 
Conservation Commission, the Sewer Commission, or any other governmental agency with jurisdiction 
over the project shall be submitted to the Planning Board for its file through the Planning Department. 

 
l.k. This decision must be recorded within 60 days of their endorsement by the Board, with a notice 

provided to the Board of the Book and Page at which each it was recorded. 
 
6. Expiration, Extension or Modification. 
 
This Special Permit Modification shall lapse only as part of any lapse of the original Special Permit as previously 
modified.  It may be further modified under the terms of Section 174-24.C.(9) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw. 
 

Commented [KL28]: Mary 

Commented [KL29]: Mary 

Commented [KL30]: Mary 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 8 

7. Signature and Filing. 
 
This special permit modification document, which incorporates by reference herein all plans noted, has been 
approved on this ___ day of _____________ 2024.  A copy of same shall be filed with the Town Clerk in 
accordance with applicable law. 
 
   
 Mashpee Planning Board - Duly Authorized Member 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
Barnstable, ss.   
 date 
 
On this ____ day of ________ 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared 
__________________________, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which were 
_____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the preceding or attached document, 
and acknowledged to me that (he/she) signed it voluntarily for its stated purpose. 
 
   
 Notary Public 
 
      My Commission expires:________________________ 
  date of expiration 
 
A copy of this decision and the accompanying plans approved by the Planning Board have been duly filed on 
_____________________, 2024 with the Town Clerk of Mashpee. 
 
   
 Town Clerk 
 
Notice of this decision was mailed on __________________________ to the applicantApplicant, to any parties 
in interest to whom such notice is required under Massachusetts General Law.  Any appeal should be made 
pursuant to Section 17 of Chapter 48 of the Massachusetts General Laws 20 days after the date of such filing. 
 
 
I, Deborah Kaye, Town Clerk of the Town of Mashpee, hereby certify that a copy of this decision and the 
accompanying plans approved by the Planning Board were filed with the office of the Town Clerk on 
______________________, 2024 and that no appeal of that decision was filed within 20 days thereafter. 
 
 
   
 Town Clerk 
 
 Date: _____________________________ 
 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 

 

 9 

Upon expiration of the statutory appeal period with no appeal having been filed, this special permit decision 
has been endorsed by the undersigned members of the Mashpee Planning Board on 
______________________, 2024 and may be recorded. 
 
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 



 

 

 

Natural Resources 

Goals, Policies, & Actions 

Goals 

Goal NR-1:  Return Mashpee’s water bodies to pristine condition. 

Goal NR-2:  Ensure Mashpee’s wildlife and wildlife habitats, both terrestrial and aquatic, continue to thrive in harmony 
with the built environment for the rest of time. 

Goal NR-3:  Never will any Mashpee resident, community member or visitor be unable to enjoy equitable access to  
pristine Natural Resources in Mashpee such as clean air and drinking water, healthy surface water bodies and estuaries, 
vast open spaces, productive wetlands, etc. 

Goal NR-4:  Remove all threats from pollutants emerging from Joint Base Cape Cod and other sources into Mashpee’s 
groundwater and open water bodies and ensure that no contamination enters and negatively impacts Mashpee’s natural 
systems. 

Goal NR-5:  Be true stewards of the land alongside the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe towards shared social, cultural, and 
environmental prosperity. 

Goal NR-6: Become a municipal leader in climate resiliency and make Mashpee’s low lying areas i.e., floodplain/Land 
Subject to Coastal Storm Flow (LSCSF), coastlines/seashore are as resilient as possible to climate change impacts. 

Goal NR-7:  Maintain and restore the quality of Mashpee’s groundwater and monitor groundwater levels to ensure an 
adequate supply of safe, high quality drinking water. 

Goal NR-8:  Prevent future harmful algal blooms such as cyanobacteria in Mashpee waters to maximize recreational 
opportunities and public health and safety on Mashpee waterways. 

Goal NR-9:  Maximize nutrient removing wastewater technologies to the maximum extent on every Mashpee parcel and 
remove and replace all outdated technologies such as cesspools.  

Policies 

Policy NR-1:    Prioritize the protection, preservation and enhancement of coastlines and of coastal habitat, terrestrial and 
aquatic habitat, wetlands, vernal pools, animal and plant populations, and wetland resource areas to minimize and 
mitigate impacts of development and climate change on all natural systems for long-term environmental and social 
benefits. 

Policy NR-2:   Develop and maintain an intergovernmental collaboration with the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe and the 
Town of Mashpee toward Natural Resource Protection. 

Policy NR-3:    Prioritize the preservation and enhancement of ancient ways to water. 

Policy NR-4:    Protect the aboriginal rights of the Wampanoag Native People for fishing, hunting and gathering in and on 
Mashpee water and lands by nurturing collaborative opportunities to educate the community about Wampanoag history 
on this land. 

Policy NR-5:    Maintain and enhance cross-sector collaborations such as with educational institutions and research 
organizations to bolster water quality sampling programs and reporting. 

Policy NR-6:    Maximize the productivity of Mashpee’s shellfisheries for recreational, commercial, and municipal 
aquaculture and promote shellfishing and aquaculture, especially in areas with impacted water quality. 

Policy NR-7:   Reduce pollutant and nutrient loads into Mashpee’s natural systems by appropriately managing 
stormwater, maintaining stormwater collection infrastructure, and limiting the use of harmful or polluting materials such 
as chemical fertilizers. 

Policy NR-8:    Maintain navigational channels not just for mariner safety but also for adequate stream and tidal flow. 

Policy NR-9:    Maximize funding opportunities for projects focused on natural resource protection.  

Policy NR-10:    Limit new development or expansion of structures in the 100 year flood plain. 



Natural Resources 

Policy NR-11:  Acquire as much land area in the floodplain for open space protection as is possible. 

Policy NR-12:  Prioritize coastal habitat restoration projects and enhance investments in green infrastructure like the 
Popponesset Spit. 

Policy NR-13:  Regularly evaluate regulatory mechanisms designed to protect natural systems and modify whenever 
conditions necessitate. 

Policy NR-14:  Continue to support the shellfish propagation and shellfish seeding program to enhance local fisheries, 
restore vital habitat, and remove excessive nitrogen in both Waquoit and Popponesset Bay. 

Policy NR-15:  Preserve fishing and hunting rights of way on shore. 

Policy NR-15:  Remedy user conflicts within waterways consistent with the DNHRMP.  

Actions 
     

Timefram
e 

Responsibilit
y 

Cost 

NR-1. Conduct a personnel 
needs assessment to 
understand gaps in 
consideration of current and 
planned water quality 
monitoring and testing 
programs. 

 
    S 

DNR 
ConC 

$ 

NR-2. Establish Water Quality 
Task force as a subcommittee of 
the Environmental Oversight 
Committee to conduct 
necessary engagement and 
community education around 
recommended bylaw changes 
to address water quality issues: 
fertilizer and pesticide use, 
wetlands buffers, and floodplain 
management. 

 
   

 
S 

TM 
BOS 
EOC 
DNR 

$ 

NR-3. Implement 
recommended stormwater 
improvements within the 
Santuit Pond Watershed as 
recommended by the Fuss & 
O'Neill MVP Action Grant. 

 
 

 
  S 

DNR 
BOS 
ConC 
DPW 
EOC 

$$ 

NR-4. Construct the 
Wastewater Treatment Facility 
and wastewater collection 
system consistent with the 
Watershed Nitrogen 
Management plan as amended 
from time to time. 

 
    M 

SC 
BOS 
BH 

DPW 

$$$ 

NR-5. Continue acquisition of 
conservation lands with a 
priority in areas with high   

   S 
ConC 
BOS 
PD 

$ 

Commented [EL1]: Policy – What actions will support it? 
Refer to draft harbor management plan 



Natural Resources 

environmental sensitivity or 
areas adjacent to other open 
space, wildlife refuge, and/or 
conservation land in recharge 
areas.   

NR-6. Implement water quality 
improvement measures as 
recommended upon 
completion of the Mashpee 
Wakeby Diagnostic Study - To 
be completed in 2025. 

 
    M 

DNR 
BOS 
ConC 

TM 

$$ 

NR-7. Invest in necessary 
equipment and facilities to test 
cyanobacteria in-house that 
would specifically identify 
species in real time to assist 
in determinations of toxicity.  

 
  

 
 S 

DNR 
BOS 
ConC 

TM  

$ 

NR-8. Continue to 
maintain navigational 
channels for not only navigation 
but for adequate stream and 
tidal flow.  

 
 

   O 
DNR 
WC 

$ 

NR-10. Continue to investigate 
and inventory the legal status of 
all known public landings and 
access to coastal water and 
great ponds to develop an 
access plan.  

 
   

 
O 

DNR 
WC 

$ 

NR-11. Work to purchase 
parcels, if feasible, to enhance 
public access to water or create 
new sites for public landings. 

 
 

   O 
BOS 
ConC 
DNR 

$$$ 

NR-12. Identify areas for coastal 
and habitat restoration to 
enhance water quality and 
implement restoration projects 
with a focus on areas within or 
in close proximity to wetland 
resource areas. Cranberry Bogs 
are an obvious place to start. 

  
   M 

DNR 
BOS 
ConC 

$ 

NR-14. Protect Mashpee from 
invasive species through 
education, regulations and 
enforcement. 

 
     

DNR 
BOS 
ConC 

$ 

NR-15. Maximize protective 
buffers to wetlands, ponds, 

 
 

 
   

DNR 
BOS 

$ 

Commented [EL2]: What about Ashumet and John’s Pond 
PFAS issues? 

Commented [EL3]: Confirm this is a priority with Ashley. 

Commented [EL4]: Duplicate of a policy above. Probably 
better as policy but need specified actions to support policy. 
Dredge related. What actions do we need to continue to 
implement to address dredging? Refer to draft Harbor 
Management Plan 



Natural Resources 

rivers, lakes, bays and other 
sensitive natural systems. 

ConC 
PD 

NR-16. Seek funding from Joint 
Base Cape Cod to begin 
addressing the PFAS 
contamination of John’s Pond 
and Ashumet Pond. 

 
     

DNR 
BOS 
ConC 

$ 

NR-17. Explore the use of a 
District of Critical Planning 
Concern to temporarily curb 
nutrient loads while a long term 
solution is planned. 

 
 

    
DNR 
ConC 

PD 
$ 

NR-18. Adopt fertilizer 
restrictions to reduce pollution 
loading from fertilizers.   

    
DNR 
BOS 
ConC 

$ 

NR-19. Implement stormwater 
retrofit projects or new 
stormwater systems using Best 
Management Practices (and low 
impact design principles) that 
have been identified by the 
Stormwater Task Force. 

   
   

DPW 
DNR 
ConC 

$ 

NR-20. Educate residents about 
the Mashpee Water District and 
encourage that all residents 
connect to public drinking 
water. 

    
 

S DPW $ 

NR-21. Identify the most 
appropriate sites to establish 
Aquaculture Development 
Zones consistent with the 
Department of Natural 
Resources Harbor Management 
Plan. 

        

NR-22. Identify, preserve, and 
enhance ancient and public 
ways to water with a particular 
focus on those areas identified 
in the Coastal Resources 
Element of the 1998 
Comprehensive Plan. 
Coordinate with officials at Joint 
Base Cape Cod to determine 
strategies and funding sources 
to address the pollutants, such 

        

Commented [EL5]: Policy? There could be regulatory 
changes to follow as actions. 

Commented [EL6]: Confirm with Ashley 



Natural Resources 

as PFAS, negatively impacting 
Mashpee residents’ quality. 

NR-23. Evaluate regulatory 
mechanisms that would limit 
construction in land under 
ocean to maintain and restore 
habitat vital to our fisheries and 
implement those regulations if 
desired and feasible.  

        

NR-24. Establish boat washes 
to prevent invasive species from 
spawning in waterways.  

    M RD $ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CORRESPONDENCE

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text





Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs

Maura T. Healey

Governor

Kimberley Driscoll

Lieutenant Governor

Rebecca L. Tepper

Secretary

Bonnie Heiple

Commissioner

Department of Environmental Protection
100 Cambridge Street 9th Floor Boston, MA 02114 Ÿ 617-292-5500

WW01 - Water-Dependent License/Permit 

Application

Permittee Information

Name: Nancy E. Gendon

Phone: (617) 285-2403

Address: 775 EAST FALMOUTH HIGHWAY, #352

EAST FALMOUTH, MA 02536

Permittee Company Information

Name: Cape and Islands Engineering, Inc.

            Lori Macdonald

Phone: (508) 477-7272

Address: 800 FALMOUTH ROAD, SUITE 301C

MASHPEE, MA 02649

Application Submitter Information

Name: LORI A MACDONALD

Phone: (508) 477-7272

Address: 800 FALMOUTH ROAD, SUITE 301C

MASHPEE, MA 02649

Location Information

Ockway Bay

16 SUMMERSEA LANE MASHPEE, MA 02649
Latitude: 41.58324

Longitude: -70.474176

Additional Contacts Info

Page 1 of 423-WW01-0151-APP12/20/2023



Please provide the Name of the 

Permittee(s) exactly as it should be listed 

in the license/permit that will be recorded 

at the Registry of Deeds (the name(s) 

listed here need to match the name(s) 

listed on the plans or the license may be 

rejected by the Registry of Deeds)

NANCY E. GENDRON

I hereby attest that I have listed all the 

Permittees in the Application Contacts 

section (each Permittee entered as a 

separate contact - do not list 2 names in 1 

field)

Yes

Is the project site within a right of way? No

Are you submitting evidence of legal 

authority to  apply in lieu of the Property 

Owner's Signature? If yes, please attach a 

document 'Evidence of Legal Authority' in 

the document section

Yes

I hereby attest that I have listed all the 

Property Owners in the Application 

Contacts section

Yes

I hereby attest that I have listed all the 

Abutters in the above Contact table 

section

Yes

Application Type

Please select the application type you are 

applying for

Residential with less than or equal to 4 units

Project Information

Brief Description of Project (e.g., dock, 

seawall, boat ramp, Harborwalk – if a 

longer narrative is to be provided, please 

upload a separate document)

Proposed project involves the replacement of the existing floating pier originally 

permitted under Chapter 91 License 5995 issued November 7, 1996.  The project 

includes the removal of three (3) existing floating piers totaling 387 sf in area and 

replacing them with two (2) new floating piers totally 192 sf in area, removing the  

existing float support pipes and replacing them with four (4) new 2-inch diameter 

support pipes.

Brief Description of Project Location - 

Non-Traditional Address (e.g., 'west end 

Toronto Avenue right-of-way at Gloucester 

Harbor' DO NOT complete this field if your 

project has a traditional address - enter 

N/A)

The existing and replacement floats are located at the end of an existing dock 

system that provides residential boating access to Ockway Bay in Mashpee.  The 

dock system to the north and behind the existing residential home at 16 

Summersea Road in Mashpee.  The property behind the home is an upland, 

landscaped and lawn area that slopes down to salt marsh before transitioning to 

open water.

Proposed Use/Activity description The existing dock and proposed replacement fixed floats will continue to be used for 

residential, recreational boating access to the water.

Is this site subject to 21E? No

Does the project exceed the MEPA review 

thresholds for Waterways standards?

No

Is the Project site in an Environmental 

Justice Community?

No

Which Wetlands Protection Act process 

document are you attaching?

WPA Negative Determination of Applicability

Page 2 of 423-WW01-0151-APP12/20/2023



Has there ever been a waterways 

jurisdictional determination issued for this 

project site?

No

Does your project require a 401 water 

quality certificate? If yes, please attach if 

currently available, a copy of '401 Water 

Quality Certificate' in the document 

section.

No

Are you seeking a Variance? If yes, please 

attach a supporting evidence of 

compliance with 310 CMR 9.21, 'Variance 

Supplement' in the document section.

No

Is the project located within the 

Designated Port Area? If yes, please 

review the standards at 310 CMR 9.12 and 

9.32.

No

Is the project located within an area 

subject to State Approved Municipal 

Harbor Plan? If yes, please attach 

supporting evidence of compliance with 

applicable MHP, 'MHP Supplement' in the 

document section.

No

Are you seeking a CWD (consolidated 

written determination) in accordance with 

310 CMR 9.14(4)? If yes, please attach a 

document 'CWD Supplement' in the 

document section.

No

Does your project involve dredging? No

Documents

Documents Required Documents:

1. Chapter 91 Plans

2. Evidence of Legal Authority

3. List of Environmental Regulatory Programs  

4. WPA Negative Determination of Applicability

Special Fee Provision

Exemption

Exclusion (special agreement or policy)

Substitution (ASP/IRP)

Double Fee for Enforcement

Hardship payment extension request

Page 3 of 423-WW01-0151-APP12/20/2023



Attachments

Latest UpdatedName TypeDescription

List of Environmental Regulatory 

Programs

 

12/15/2023Chapter 91 

environmental-regulatory-pr

ograms 12-15-23.docx

List of Env Reg Programs Checklist  

Chapter 91 Plans 12/20/2023Chapter 91.pdf 16 Summersea Chapter 91 License Plans  

Other 12/20/2023CH 91 NOTIFICATION LIST 

& Abutters List.pdf

Chapter 91 Notification and Abutter's List  

Evidence of Legal Authority

 

12/20/2023Deed for 16 Summersea 

and Western Lot.pdf

Deed Showing Ownership

WPA Negative Determination of 

Applicability

 

12/20/2023Negative DOA 16 

Summersea Road 10 23 

2023.pdf

16 Summersea Neg DOA MA WPA  

Application Contacts

EmailContact TypeTelephone #Contact PersonOrganization NameName

lmacdonald@capeeng.c

om

(508) 477-7272n/an/aLORI, 

MACDONALD

Application 

Prepared By

Fee Info

Amount: 

Description: 

Status: 

$ 215.00 

WW01 Application Fees

INVOICED

Certification Information

Individual

LORI MACDONALD

800 FALMOUTH ROAD, SUITE 301C

MASHPEE, MA 02649

United States

Telephone #: (508) 477-7272

E-mail: lmacdonald@capeeng.com

I hereby certify that the information submitted in this application is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. All 

applicants and property owners must sign the “Proof of Signature” which will be provided after initial review by the Department. 

All future application correspondence may be signed by the Application Submitter.

Page 4 of 423-WW01-0151-APP12/20/2023



List of Environmental Regulatory Programs 

Pursuant to 310 CMR 9.11(3)(b)4., an application shall include a list of state environmental regulatory programs with 
which the project must comply, in accordance with the applicable provisions of 310 CMR 9.33. Please check all that 
are applicable and add any additional programs in the “Other” field. 
 

☐ Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act, M.G.L. c. 
30, §§ 61 through 62H and 301 CMR 11.00: MEPA 
Regulations. 

☒ Wetlands Protection Act, M.G.L. c. 131, § 40, and 
310 CMR 10.00: Wetlands Protection. 
 

☐ Wetlands Restriction Acts, M.G.L. c. 130, § 105 and 
c. 131, § 40A, and 310 CMR 12.00: Adopting Coastal 
Wetlands Orders and 310 CMR 13.00: Adopting Inland 
Wetlands Orders. All projects shall comply with 
wetland restriction orders recorded pursuant to these 
statutes. 
 

☐ Areas of Critical Environmental Concern, M.G.L. c. 
21A, § 2(7) and St. 1974, c. 806, § 40(E), and 301 CMR 
12.00: Areas of Critical Environmental Concern. 
 

☐ Massachusetts Clean Waters Act, M.G.L. c. 21, §§ 26 
through 53, and 314 CMR 3.00: Surface Water 
Discharge Permit Program, 314 CMR 5.00: Ground 
Water Discharge Permit Program, 314 CMR 7.00: 
Sewer System Extension and Connection Permit 
Program, 314 CMR 9.00: 401 Water Quality 
Certification for Discharge of Dredged or Fill Material, 
Dredging, and Dredged Material Disposal in Waters of 
the United States Within the Commonwealth, and 310 
CMR 15.00: The State Environmental Code, Title 5: 
Standard Requirements for the Siting, Construction, 
Inspection, Upgrade and Expansion of On-site 
Sewage Treatment and Disposal Systems and for the 
Transport and Disposal of Septage. 
 

☐ Ocean Sanctuaries Act, M.G.L. c. 132A, §§ 13 
through 16 and 18, and 302 CMR 5.00: Ocean 
Sanctuaries. No license or permit shall be issued for 
any structure or fill that is expressly prohibited in 
M.G.L. c. 132A, §§ 1 through 16. 
 

☐ Marine Fisheries Laws, M.G.L. c. 130, and 322 CMR 
1.00: Enforcement of Rules and Regulations. 
 

☐ Scenic Rivers Act, M.G.L. c. 21, § 17B, and 302 CMR 
3.00: Scenic and Recreational Rivers Orders. 
 
 
 
 

☐ Massachusetts Historical Commission Act, M.G.L. c. 
9, §§ 26 through 27C, as amended by St. 1982, c. 152 
and St. 1988, c. 254, and 950 CMR 71.00: Protection of 
Properties Included in the State Register of Historic 
Places. For projects for which a Project Notification 
Form must be submitted pursuant to 950 CMR 71.07: 
Review of Projects the applicant shall file said form 
with the Massachusetts Historical Commission.  
 

☐ Mineral Resources Act, M.G.L. c. 21, §§ 54 through 
58. 
 

☐ Massachusetts Drinking Water Act, M.G.L. c. 111, §§ 
159 through 174A, and 310 CMR 22.00: Land 
Application of Sludge and Septage. 
 

☐ Underwater Archeological Resources Act, M.G.L. c. 
91 and c. 6, §§ 179 and 180, and 312 CMR 2.00: 
Massachusetts Underwater Archaeological Resources. 
 

☐ Hazardous Waste Management Act, M.G.L. c. 21C 
and 310 CMR 30.000: Hazardous Waste. 
 

☐ Solid Waste Disposal Act, M.G.L. c. 16, §§ 18 
through 24, and 310 CMR 16.00: Site Assignment 
Regulations for Solid Waste Facilities. 
 

☐ Air Pollution Act, M.G.L. c. 111, §§ 142A through I 
and 310 CMR 7.00: Air Pollution Control. 
 

☐ State Highway Curb Cuts, M.G.L. c. 81, § 21. 
 

☐ Energy Restructuring Act, M.G.L. c. 164, §§ 69G 
through S, and 980 CMR 1.00 through 12.00. 
 

☐ Regional land use control statutes, including the 
Martha's Vineyard Commission Act, St. 1974, c. 637, c. 
831, and the Cape Cod Commission Act, St. 1989, c. 
716. 
 

☐ Other 
_____________________________________________
_____________________________________________
_____________________________________________
_____________________________________________ 
 



Page 1 of 2 

CHAPTER 91 LICENSE 
16 Summersea Road, Mashpee (Map/Parcel 104-93A)

Notification List  
(per 310 CMR 9.13 (1)(a)) 

Mashpee Town Manager 
16 Great Neck Road North 
Mashpee, MA 02649 

Mashpee Planning Board 
16 Great Neck Road North 
Mashpee, MA 02649 

Mashpee Conservation Commission 
16 Great Neck Road North 
Mashpee, MA 02649 

Mashpee Harbormaster 
31 Mercantile Way 
Unit 6/7 
Mashpee, MA 02649 

Cape Cod Commission 
Attn: Heather McElroy 
3225 Main Street 
PO Box 226 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

Coastal Zone Management 
Attn: Robert L. Boeri 
100 Cambridge Street, Suite 800 
Boston, MA 02114 

Environmental Monitor 
Public Notices must be received by 5 p.m. on the 15th and last day of each month for publication 
in the next issue of the Environmental Monitor. If the 15th or last day falls on a weekend or 
holiday, the deadline is extended to the next business day. Public notices should be e-mailed in 
PDF format to MEPA@mass.gov 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
New England Division 
Attn: Bettina M. Chaisson 
696 Virginia Road 
Concord, MA 01742 

mailto:MEPA@mass.gov


Page 2 of 2 

CHAPTER 91 LICENSE 
16 Summersea Road, Mashpee (Map/Parcel 104-93A)

Notification List  
(per 310 CMR 9.13 (1)(a)) 

Attached Highlighted Certified Abutter’s List (Parcels Outlined in Pink) 

Abutters according to 9.11(3)(b)1.:  Abutter means the owner of land which shares, along the water’s edge, a 
common boundary or corner with a project site, as well as the owner of land which lies within 50 feet across a 
water body from such site. Ownership shall be determined according to the records of the local tax assessors 
office. 

New Seabury Proper�es LLC  
(Map/Parcel 104-91-0-R - 40 Red Brook) 
20 Red Brook Road 
Mashpee, MA 02649 

Arlene C. Rand 
(Map/Parcel 104-97-0-R – 20 Summersea) 
280 Boylston Street, #205 
Chestnut Hill, MA 02467 

Gerald S. Fine & Risa Schneider Fine, Trustees 
(Map/Parcel 104-94-0-R – 12 Summersea) 
The 12 Summersea Road Realty Trust 
12 Summersea Road 
Mashpee, MA 02649 










    

   

   

   


   

   

   
 

   

   

   

   

   


   


   

   

   

 

       

       

       




       

       

Parcel is Actually a 
Part of 104-95-0-R



    

   

   

   


   

   

   


 



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                           N O T                 N O T                          
                            A N                   A N                           
                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     
                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         
                                                                                
                           N O T                 N O T                          
                            A N                   A N                           
                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     
                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                           N O T                 N O T                          
                            A N                   A N                           
                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     
                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         
                                                                                
                           N O T                 N O T                          
                            A N                   A N                           
                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     
                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                           N O T                 N O T                          
                            A N                   A N                           
                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     
                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         
                                                                                
                           N O T                 N O T                          
                            A N                   A N                           
                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     
                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         













FZ

FZ

FZ

FZ

SUMMERSEA  ROAD(40' WIDE - PRIVATE)

O c k w a y      B a y

LOT 134A
& PARCEL
104 - 93A

LO
T 

13
5

GE
RA

LD
 S

 &
 R

IS
A 

FI
NE

, T
RU

ST
EE

S

TH
E 

12
 S

UM
ME

RS
EA

 R
D 

RE
AL

TY
 T

RU
ST

12
 S

UM
ME

RS
EA

 R
OA

D,
 M

AS
HP

EE
, M

A
02

64
9

LO
T 

13
3

AR
LE

NE
 C

. R
AN

D,
28

0 
BO

YL
ST

ON
 S

T 
- #

20
5

CH
ES

TN
UT

 H
IL

L,
 M

A 
02

46
7

FEMA ZONE

AE(EL.12')

AE(EL.11')

FEMA ZONE
AE(EL.11')

ZONE X

#16
DWELLING

EXISTING
FLOATS TO

BE REMOVED
PROPERTY

LINE
EXTENSION

MLW EL.
= -1.7'

MEAN HIGH
WATER PER PLAN

BOOK 242 PAGE 81
(HISTORIC MHW)

EXISTING PIER
TO REMAIN

LICENSE NO. 5995

POOL

MHW EL. = 1.0'

FLO
O

D
EBB

RESERVE AREA "O"
(40 SUMMERSEA RD)

NEW SEABURY PROPERTIES LLC
20 RED BROOK RD,

MASHPEE, MA  02649

0

SCALE:

25 50 100

1" = 50'

PLAN BY: CAPE & ISLANDS ENGINEERING, INC.
508.477.7272

LOCUS MAP
SCALE: 1"=2000'

DEP FILE # XXXX

LOCUS

NOTES:
1. LOCATIONS ARE BASED ON AN "ON THE GROUND" INSTRUMENT

SURVEY.
2. HORIZONTAL DATUM: NAD83
3. VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD88
4. ZONE DESIGNATION OF AE (ELEV 11 & 12) AND MINIMAL FLOOD

HAZARD ZONE X BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
AGENCY (FEMA), ON FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO.
25001C0753J, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF JULY 16, 2014.

5. MEAN HIGH & MEAN LOW WATER DETERMINATION BASED FROM
BUZZADS BAY NATIONAL ESTUARY PROGRAM TIDE GAUGE
STATION POINT 1016 LOCATED IN OCKWAY BAY (LAT. 41.58551,
LON. -70.473823) AND THE FOLLOWING: MHW = 1.0' NAVD88, AND
MLW = -1.7' NAVD88.

6. ABUTTER INFORMATION FROM A TOWN OF MASHPEE, MA
ASSESSOR'S ONLINE DATABASE SEARCH DATED DEC. 18 2023

I CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, AS PREPARED, CONFORMS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE REGISTERS OF
DEEDS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS.

LEGEND
PROPERTY LINE
HISTORIC MHW
MEAN HIGH WATER
(MHW, EL. 1.0 NAVD88)
MEAN LOW WATER  
(MLW, EL.  -1.7 NAVD88)
FEMA FLOODPLAIN
ZONE AE BOUNDARY

PRIOR CHAPTER 91 AUTHORIZATIONS
AUTHORIZATION LICENSE NO. 5995
ISSUING AGENCY MASS DEP
DATE NOV. 07, 1996
RECORDED (BARNSTABLE) BOOK 10505 PAGE 093

PL

FZ

DATENAME

PLAN ACCOMPANYING PETITION OF NANCY E. GENDRON TO
REMOVE EXISTING FLOATING PIERS AND PIPES, INSTALL NEW
FLOATING PIERS AND SUPPORT PIPES, AND MAINTAIN
EXISTING PILE SUPPORTED PIER, RAMP, FLOATS AND PIPES
IN & OVER THE WATERS OF OCKWAY BAY AT 16 SUMMERSEA
ROAD, MASHPEE, BARNSTABLE COUNTY, MASSACHUSETTS

EXISTING CONDITIONS
 SHEET 1 OF 4

DECEMBER 18, 2023
REV.: 12/28/2023

G
R

EA
T

N
EC

K
R

O
AD

SO
U

TH

SUMMER-
SEA RD

RED
BROOKRD

OCK
W

AY
BA

Y

N

DRAWING INDEX
SHEET SHEET TITLE

1 EXISTING
CONDITIONS

2 SITE PLAN
3 PIER PROFILE
4 FLOAT DETAILS

P L
P L

P L

P L

PL

R
O

C
K

LA
N

D
IN

G
R

D

WADINGPLACE RD

BLUE
CASTLE

DR

12/18/2023

N

REVISION: 2/12/2024



0.1

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.9

1.0

0.1

0.4

0.6
0.8

0.9

1.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

0.9

1.0

0.0

0.9

1.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.9

1.1

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.8

1.0

1.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.7

0.9

1.0
O c k w a y      B a y

FLOAT

FL
O

AT
FL

O
AT

R
 A

 M
 P

NHESP E
SIM

ATED &

PRIO
RITY H

ABITAT

6'

15
'

8'

16'

8'

EXISTING FLOATS
TO BE REMOVED

ABUTTING
PIER, RAMP

& FLOAT

PROPERTY LINE
EXTENSION

17.7'

PROPOSED
5' x 16' & 6' x 20'

FLOATS
18.6'

MLW EL. = -1.7'

DEPTH BELOW
MLW (TYP.)

PEAT BANK

24
'

20
'

8.
7'

PROPOSED 2"
DIAMETER PIPE

(TYP. OF 4)

0.7'

EXISTING RAMP
TO BE REMOVED &
RESET

5'

16
'

6'

0.4'

REPLACE FACE
BOARD TO ALLOW
PROPOSED ANGLEEXISTING PIER TO REMAIN

LICENSE NO. 5995

ABUTTING
FLOAT

PROPERTY LINE
EXTENSION FLO

O
D

EBB

RESERVE AREA "O"
(40 SUMMERSEA RD)

NEW SEABURY
PROPERTIES LLC

0

SCALE:

5 10 20

1" = 10'

PLAN BY: CAPE & ISLANDS ENGINEERING, INC.
508.477.7272

N

SITE PLAN
SHEET 2 OF 4

DECEMBER 18, 2023

I CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, AS PREPARED, CONFORMS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE REGISTERS OF
DEEDS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS.

DATENAME
12/18/2023

REVISION: 2/12/2024



PI
ER

 P
R

O
FI

LE

M
LW

M
LW

M
LW

M
LW

M
LW

M
LW

M
H

W
M

H
W

M
H

W
M

H
W

M
H

W
M

H
W

M
H

W
M

H
W

M
H

W
M

H
W

M
H

W
M

H
W

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 6

' x
 2

4'
 F

LO
AT

TO
 B

E 
R

EM
O

VE
D

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 (2

)  
8'

 x
 1

6'
FL

O
AT

S 
TO

 B
E

R
EM

O
VE

D

TW
O

 P
R

O
PO

SE
D

FL
O

AT
S:

 5
' x

 1
6'

& 
6'

 x
 2

0'

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

IE
R

, R
AM

P 
AN

D
 F

LO
AT

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

U
R

FA
C

E

SA
LT

M
AR

SH

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 3

' x
 3

0'
R

AM
P

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 4

"
D

IA
M

ET
ER

 P
IP

ES
TO

 B
E 

R
EM

O
VE

D

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 2

" D
IA

M
ET

ER
 P

IP
E

(T
YP

. O
F 

4)

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

AM
P,

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 F

LO
AT

S 
& 

PI
PE

S 
TO

 B
E 

SE
AS

O
N

AL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IX
PI

ER
 T

O
R

EM
AI

N

M
H

W
 E

L.
= 

1.
0

M
LW

 E
L.

= 
-1

.7

ELEVATION, FEET (NAVD88) -1
0-50510

SC
AL

E:
 1

" =
   

   
  F

EE
T

10

20
0

5
10

PLAN BY: CAPE & ISLANDS ENGINEERING, INC.
508.477.7272

I CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, AS PREPARED, CONFORMS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE REGISTERS OF
DEEDS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS.

DATENAME

PIER PROFILE
SHEET 3 OF 4

DECEMBER 18, 2023

12/18/2023

REVISION: 2/12/2024



N
O

TE
:

FL
O

AT
S 

AR
E 

TO
 B

E 
ST

O
R

ED
 O

N
SI

TE
 IN

 A
N

 U
PL

AN
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

.

D
EC

KI
N

G
 A

N
D

 S
PA

C
IN

G
TO

 M
AT

C
H

 E
XI

ST
IN

G

SI
D

ES
 &

 E
N

D
S 

TO
M

AT
C

H
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

PR
E-

M
O

LD
ED

 H
IG

H
 D

EN
SI

TY
PO

LY
ET

H
YL

EN
E 

SH
EL

L
EN

C
AP

SU
LA

TE
D

PO
LY

ST
YR

EN
E 

FL
O

AT
S

16
 F

EE
T

5 FEET

2"
 x

 1
0"

 M
O

U
N

TS
2"

 x
 1

0"
 S

KI
D

S

1/
2"

 G
AL

VA
N

IZ
ED

C
AR

R
IA

G
E 

BO
LT

S 
&

W
AS

H
ER

S 
AS

 N
EE

D
ED

FL
O

AT
 D

ET
AI

L
N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
AL

E

SE
C

TI
O

N
 V

IE
W

PL
AN

 V
IE

W

20
 F

EE
T

H
IN

G
E 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

6 FEET

PLAN BY: CAPE & ISLANDS ENGINEERING, INC.
508.477.7272

I CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, AS PREPARED, CONFORMS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE REGISTERS OF
DEEDS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS.

DATENAME

FLOAT DETAILS
SHEET 4 OF 4

DECEMBER 18, 2023

12/18/2023





Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs

Maura T. Healey

Governor

Kimberley Driscoll

Lieutenant Governor

Rebecca L. Tepper

Secretary

Bonnie Heiple

Commissioner

Department of Environmental Protection
100 Cambridge Street 9th Floor Boston, MA 02114 Ÿ 617-292-5500

WW01 - Water-Dependent License/Permit 

Application

Permittee Information

Name: David  Elkinson

Phone: (508) 335-7410

Address: 10 SCHIPPER FARM LANE

SOUTHBOROUGH, MA 01772

Application Submitter Information

Name: ERICA  BORSELLI

Phone: (508) 495-1225, (508) 423-6403

Address: 17 ACADEMY LANE, STE. 200

FALMOUTH, MA 02540

Location Information

Popponesset Bay

199 DANIELS ISLAND ROAD MASHPEE, MA 02649
Latitude: 413524

Longitude: 702752

List of Abutters

Full Legal Name

 

Abutting Property Address

 

Gloria L. Clough, Trustee 649 Sudbury Road

Concord, MA 01742

Additional Contacts Info

Please provide the Name of the 

Permittee(s) exactly as it should be listed 

in the license/permit that will be recorded 

at the Registry of Deeds (the name(s) 

listed here need to match the name(s) 

listed on the plans or the license may be 

rejected by the Registry of Deeds)

David Elkinson, Trustee Daniels Island Realty Trust

Page 1 of 424-WW01-0038-APP3/20/2024



I hereby attest that I have listed all the 

Permittees in the Application Contacts 

section (each Permittee entered as a 

separate contact - do not list 2 names in 1 

field)

Yes

Is the project site within a right of way? No

Are you submitting evidence of legal 

authority to  apply in lieu of the Property 

Owner's Signature? If yes, please attach a 

document 'Evidence of Legal Authority' in 

the document section

No

I hereby attest that I have listed all the 

Property Owners in the Application 

Contacts section

Yes

I hereby attest that I have listed all the 

Abutters in the above Contact table 

section

Yes

Application Type

Please select the application type you are 

applying for

Residential with less than or equal to 4 units

Project Information

Brief Description of Project (e.g., dock, 

seawall, boat ramp, Harborwalk – if a 

longer narrative is to be provided, please 

upload a separate document)

The applicant proposes to replace the existing 6’ x 16’ float area with a new 8’ x 25’ 

float.  The area of the new float will be 200 square feet.

Brief Description of Project Location - 

Non-Traditional Address (e.g., 'west end 

Toronto Avenue right-of-way at Gloucester 

Harbor' DO NOT complete this field if your 

project has a traditional address - enter 

N/A)

N/A

Proposed Use/Activity description Non commercial access and docking to navigable waters

Is this site subject to 21E? No

Does the project exceed the MEPA review 

thresholds for Waterways standards?

No

Is the Project site in an Environmental 

Justice Community?

No

Which Wetlands Protection Act process 

document are you attaching?

WPA Order of Conditions

Has there ever been a waterways 

jurisdictional determination issued for this 

project site?

No

Does your project require a 401 water 

quality certificate? If yes, please attach if 

currently available, a copy of '401 Water 

Quality Certificate' in the document 

section.

No

Page 2 of 424-WW01-0038-APP3/20/2024



Are you seeking a Variance? If yes, please 

attach a supporting evidence of 

compliance with 310 CMR 9.21, 'Variance 

Supplement' in the document section.

No

Is the project located within the 

Designated Port Area? If yes, please 

review the standards at 310 CMR 9.12 and 

9.32.

No

Is the project located within an area 

subject to State Approved Municipal 

Harbor Plan? If yes, please attach 

supporting evidence of compliance with 

applicable MHP, 'MHP Supplement' in the 

document section.

No

Are you seeking a CWD (consolidated 

written determination) in accordance with 

310 CMR 9.14(4)? If yes, please attach a 

document 'CWD Supplement' in the 

document section.

No

Does your project involve dredging? No

Documents

Documents Required Documents:

1. Chapter 91 Plans

2. List of Environmental Regulatory Programs

3. WPA Order of Conditions

Special Fee Provision

Exemption

Exclusion (special agreement or policy)

Substitution (ASP/IRP)

Double Fee for Enforcement

Hardship payment extension request

Attachments

Latest UpdatedName TypeDescription

Chapter 91 Plans 03/20/2024Ch 91 Plan Stamped.pdf Ch 91 License plans

WPA Order of Conditions 03/20/2024OOC 43-3266.pdf Order of Conditions

List of Environmental Regulatory 

Programs

 

03/20/2024List of Environmental 

Regulatory Programs.pdf

List of Environmental Regulatory programs  

Page 3 of 424-WW01-0038-APP3/20/2024



Application Contacts

EmailContact TypeTelephone #Contact PersonOrganization NameName

erica@falmouthengineeri

ng.com

(508) 495-1225n/an/aERICA, 

BORSELLI

Application 

Prepared By

Fee Info

Amount: 

Description: 

Status: 

Payment Date: 

$ 215.00 

WW01 Application Fee - Residential with <= to 4 units

Paid

20-Mar-2024

Certification Information

Individual

ERICA BORSELLI

17 ACADEMY LANE, STE. 200

FALMOUTH, MA 02540

United States

Telephone #: (508) 495-1225, (508) 423-6403

E-mail: erica@falmouthengineering.com

I hereby certify that the information submitted in this application is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

 All applicants and property owners must sign the “Proof of Signature” which will be provided after initial review by the 

Department. All future application correspondence may be signed by the Application Submitter. 

Page 4 of 424-WW01-0038-APP3/20/2024






















	SB 12-18-23
	ANR Complete 04-10-24
	Plan of land (ANR-stamped) 4-3-24
	ZoningArticlePHN_May 2024_Final
	South Cape C&I (1)
	South Cape Estates update on road takings
	Christopher Ln
	Pesce Engr. Invoices
	532 Main St. - Pesce Engr. Inv. #2180
	Country Club Estates - Pesce Engr. Inv. #2179
	Cranberry Pt. - Pesce Engr. Inv. #2176
	New Seabury - Pesce Engr. Inv. #2182
	Ockway Highlands - Pesce Engr. Inv. #2178
	Willow Circle - Pesce Engr. Inv. #2181

	CranberryPoint_Decision_DRAFT (PJC edits 4-2-24).doc
	Decision Redlined 04112024
	CranberryPoint_Decision_DRAFT 2.doc
	Natural Resources_ERL 3.5.2024
	Ch91_16 Summersea Ln
	CH-91_16 Summersea Ln_Signed
	CH 91 application 2-15-24
	Deed for 16 Summersea and Western Lot.pdf
	DB 25075-255
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page
	AFP Page


	PB 242-81 F1
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page


	DB 2073-80 Lot 136A WEST ABUTTER NEW CONFIGURATION.PDF
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page


	DB 2764-210 Lot 134 DEED FROM GROSSBACK & MISTAKE DROPPING OFF THE PORTION THEY AQUIRED.PDF
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page




	CH 91 plans 2-15-24

	Ch91_199 Daniels Island Rd
	Ch_91_199 Daniels Island Rd_Signed
	WW-POR-v1_20240320_175311
	ch_91_plan_stamped

	Correspondence
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



